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1| OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased Dy
over 82% in the last 3 years
from £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is cver 822,600
carbon tonnes this yesar

Number of loans
Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK




2 | STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Executive’s review

Qur Group was n 2 sobd position corming cut of
the tockdown rezoonse 1o Cowid-19, and our
husiness nas continued

Ut the year

d 1o perforn roousty

tmrougho This year nas

unforecasted growtin in value of
o

primanly drven ny the Norease in energy oncaes

Ferny Trathng Uimited ("the Comipany” or togetaer
with s subsdar &3 "tne Group”) targes consistent
growtn for snareholder

T

rs over the long term, with a
focus on steady and gredictable growth, this s
pardcularly important aurng more challengng

econornic cond:ars, We rave a diversified and

mature bhusin

3 befiting & Growp wtl more thar

2 years ofty

ad:ng fisicry and ami The Group
comorises rmore than 300 comrpanies that have

operatedin a

range of sectors over many years
generating steady long-term growsh for Gur

shareholders We operate \n essentat sectors tat
wWe expe
volatility

cito perform steadily through market

o add

—aton i a

From t7s secure pase we have beer abie

Incremantal expansion and aivers

measured way throwgn seexing out opporunities in

tors prosde us

with a3 ptat:‘cfm te)

Our EX'S q straregy. Today,
iole

rty lending, healthcare infrastructure

contnue to expand In ine with

our Group COmor ses

2 buid.rg divisions. We nave grown

whea 3:c“n(fcaf'x oresence withir our most
iers, producing 4 2% of tne LK
soar energy and 1.7% of tre LK's onsrore wind
energy cutput, arnd puldng a E381m short an
roecium term lendng business that faciitates tne
carstruclon and improverrent o° homes

trrougho at the LUK
Tre Corrparys cshate price de wered 10% growth

ovar the past
of 4% growln per

2 ronths, we. aread of cur target

arnur. The extraordinary growh
Yy

v aftributable o our e-ergy dwision, wiichk has
benefiteq fron a signfhzact rorezse iniong-re™

incresse N the valus of our energy division was
susoorted by sodd operational cerformance across

all sectors and some crganic growth 1 rewer

We rema/r 3 sUCDortve ernp.oysn Wb more tharn

ull-tirne staff across the tusingsses that we
own and onerate, and imcirect employmert
provided for nurdreds more people trrougn

contracts trat we have 1~ place

A reflection on our year
Cur busiress raised £404m frorr investos this year,

celivered consisien: revenues wnle growing capital

GeOYMment, e Foven e

genersted acr Z4z25m; and net
assets of £2.715m (202 restatedd)

The fnangial stzterments for tne year sNow an

operanng proft before tax of £43m aga nst our

expecied oucome of 4 srnall accounting proﬁf Tnis

roust perforrence s a direch resalt ©f ene
produces by the g

oy

un berrg sald for h.ghe' DrIces
aurng tre year Amocst 60% of cur pusiness
cornpnses rerewsatle eng -ﬁy gerierating assets such

33 SOar ensrgy sies and wnd farms,

WICH prowds
long-term reverue streamnt. Thess are riernt oraily

diversified across a range of =chnolocies ¢ miugate

AGanst Pocr CETCrTance ina 30¢eC Mg sector and

contribute towarde steady, prec Clable share price

growth, however, tnelr values can st be rmpacted
oy crandes npricing and dema~d YWe have seen
conisecutive and matarzi ncreases in long term
E"E‘F’Jy price foracasts and energy forwarn rates
globaly over the last 15 rﬁ.fmtr:s as e global

C-

v d-19 ganden’c,

ecor;r*my re

3
a
=
[}

Cur assets in these sectors have been bolsiersd this

year with tre zzguisiion of ses in co~olemenrtary

wrsSIChors, as we | ac using ¢

ur gxpertise g enter

as
tre LK comme-cial and industna! roo®on soer
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Chief Executive's review

markets and starting construction on & large wind
farr in Australia. At the start of the year we added
rve power divisian
wnuch brin [

ten sites far most of 25211 These s
perforred ahead of expeciatiars, generairg
ERTDA of £26m (2021 £1m) during ©

nire addiwonal sitez to our rese
15 US Up iC 26 sites in total [compared o
5

ites have

ne year

O suczessful and weli-establznoed Diomass
divisior contnues to perform well and nas
delivered stable returs since acguizition in 2015
sed to sae
e at oLy Newest BicImass sie mn

This year, | have beer particularly plea

strong performanc
Snetterton, Fast Angla, wnich was acquired in April
2021, proving to be g valuable agdt'o

pbusness Dunng the year we purchased a Waste-

110 the
to-Erergy fa truction in
Ayrshre. Trhe faciliny ha
rs and will be capatle of processing over

cility currently under cons
T beern in developreni for
three vea
85600 tonnes per annum of non-recyclacie
Fadsencwd, caommercial and mdustyal waste which
would otherwize b
This wil generate 17 MWe of low carbon elecricny,
e the first
arge-scale, subsidy free waste-to-energy proect n
western Scotland and prosected completion date is

e sent o landfil or exported

enoLgh to powers 30,000 homes [Twill b

ineary 2024

Over recert years, many of our energy asseis nave
s contnblted to

oLr previousty reporied accounting losses, This s

neen under construction wiich -
typical of such business
even when cash generatwve, because
siich as depreciation,
This divisic™ has now reached
tor spat

es during growih phase

finarce CosTs
and accounting charges
exceeded revenues,
cur target size ard sec

Accordingly this year | am pleased to report an

L of F48m against our
budgeted smatl account:ng ;a.roﬁr_. Tris clightly
larger than expected orofit i< due to tne maturity of
the portfoho and higher energy prices; resuiung in
mcreased revenue from our energy division as we:l

as an ncrease ninfiation (as explained below)

Cur property lending business makes ug arcuns
27% of the Groun and comprises snort and medium
term secured loans o excernienced property
orofessionals. Tnis estanlished part of our business
contrided ¢ gerform we.l, following a short penad
of slow down dunng Covd-19 when we
rtentionaly chose o wrte fewer oans. Our average

ioan book was 182 loans this vear 1o LK horrowers

Our lending division hias atways operated at

conzervatve loarn to value levels (below 707, in
order that it mainta ns access
there 5 a reduct o1 1N Droperty values,
nas served the Group well since nception 12 years
Jgh pencds of change

to valuable security if

This strategy

ago, and it has operaed thro
several imes The Group '§ taking a naturally
cautious apgroach whean assessing nevw lencing
cpoortunities inught of tne changrg econamic
yhas lent £2 2on of
2010, suffering

track recerd

cutook To date, the Grow
properiy 1o
only r_6r‘ﬂ N capita. loses This sirong

5MS siNCe INCepion n
s the result of cur carefu approach in thee sector,
compr.sing discighined due diligerce, conservative
war-to value ratics and an ability and wilingrass {o
reduce activily i this sector during times of
ecoromic uncerainty, We will continue to adopt
this approach troughour the coming year

The healthc
Groug and s bro

division makes up around 4% of the
aaly performing well Gur
-atirement villages business, Rangeford Holdings
Limited "Rargeford”) continued to sell aparimenis
at inree sites, commenced constructon of a fourth
wvillage ‘in Chertsey, and acquired a ffth wocation
near Camondge duning the yvear Zales at the
Cherrsey site are expected 10 commerce in 2024,
white construcucn at the Cambridge site is
expected 1o start n 2023 with the first saies
commencng in 2026

Hr\»r\

Our fibre division was established in 201% ana
rerrains an area of growth for the Group, now

[

omprisirg of six operatirg businessas Sur
re&dent‘a\ businesses, Jurassic Fibre, Swsh hibre,




Chief Executive's review

Giganet and Alipoinits Fibre gre buiding uiiratast
" broadband networks n

ragicns of the UK which have beer overlonked by

"fiore to the pramises

larger cperaters Gigane

T provides connectiviny to

hornes and busines 2 U using CityFiore

and Gpenreack infrastruc

5985 ACrCss the
sure anc YVirs

> @ sofhware

development corn

JJ
e
)
[

T
.
e
[o}
Ll
<
@
o
D
(=3

propretary software 10 allow Internet Serwce
Providers o sell co

networks, nclu

O
3
(8}
>
z
o
3
&

UKz oy dedica
onorovding ©

Ir: the year, our rasidertal fihre

contriued 1O invest &apmax N expa
natwerks n ke Home Courties, the Souts and
Soutrwest of England, a~d are now onosarding

cusiomers to ther networks, generating recurring
revenues for tne Group Our state-of-the-art
nalworks are abe to meet customer demand for

twgher broackand speseds reguired az a resu
more workmag-rom-nome and ncreesed . ssg f
CIn Lordor, Vorcoss has
aiLo contnues o bu%‘c’ 3¢ has insialed over
S00xm of fbre with a commirment to offer 10Ghp:
;16 15,000 blusnesses

fibre to LD y Central Londaon

by 2027

WSt sur Fhiro division remans in 2 grow s phass
for the next 3-5 years we do not excect it to report

an accounting proft

Towards the erd of the vear, we acded a new
property deveoger to tre Lroup, with the acguizion
fE via'l for E85m.

of Elvia Homes
establiskes house buide developing mid marke!

Elvia s an

farily romes n London commuter fowns and
vilaces Whie tis represents a very sma'l cart of tre
a reasurad way over

ate target o delver
cwding 2075 ngh qua

sffordabie hormes. ©via nas a strong existirg

Group, we Diar o grow it in
the next five years wen an aldir

60C homes per year

ecadersiio team who are key D running he LLsiress,

Inflation and Interest rates

Trie higher rate of inf.aton experenced
has bes
outperforrnance agains: expec
Company's share price HM Treesury farecast that
~tuntii 2025, &z a

result we expect to receive more revenLe [or the

this year
~resporaipte for some of tne

ons in the

mghn 1-fator s Lkely 10 De pres

energy generated witnin our enargy civiaion, ard &

hugner value from e government sulsidies trat
some of our energy sites cenefit from, increasing
tra valua of inose sites. However, a short pericd of
Figh inf.aton such as forecas: has very litile effect

on tre rate at wric
Tris is bec

e
denve ner vaiue from discounted oro

nthe Groug is expecied o grow
SR
qutc

renewab'e

ause e able er
cashflows over the e they are expectaed 5
operate for, wypically 20 years or more. f the
outlcok for iong-term infiahion were o norease the
mpact on our stare price shoula be posiive

because it wou'd roresss fne raverue each of cur

sites would expect to make, ir contrast 1o 3

relatively fixea Cost base.

The exgected nse
returr o normal after & sic

low rates The rrrediate impact 2F tras on our

az not i

ol Group 1z nent onally strudiured so

EXDENENCE S\gﬂ ACENt value eros-on when interest

rates charg

spproa
ris g inte

CWe continue to s

ur endng bus

erest rates ave felt more closely, anc we

ch w‘t‘m‘“ e}

have tne aciuly 10 reduce ine nurber of WCars

the risk profie

we write, or alter
terough reducirg

activity . certain parts of the rrarke! gnou'd that
fee. appropnaie

1
i
H
i

i
i
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Current trading and outlook
Snce the yeaf end. the Group has continued 1o

performi steadily from an operational perspactive

and in bre with our excectation: albet we nave
seen share price growtn alead of target due (o the
continued increaze ' long term energy once
forecasts, Cur growth argets for tne Group over
the medium and long term remain uncharged, and
we continue to focus on maintaining a dversifed
ousness thatis capable of delver ng more

orodiciable growth for shareholders

The recently announced clectnaty Gererator Levy
"EGL within The 2023 Finance Bl w ll have an
IMpact on tha returns generaied from our erergy
nortfcto over the next 5 years. This s further

discusied i1 the group france revew or paje 27

Ciur progerty lending business contnueas to

perform srongly, with increased dec-myrr1er':-‘ inths
secior snce the year e~d We focus on shert term
loans {cur average current loan terr s 17 months,
wrich enables us to adapt to changes 1IN outoox

swiftly, we feel this s partcularly important in the

current economic Cumate,

developed over ti

Perforrrance in our tealthcare division continues
1o ne stahie, ard we conunue o rer-am pos lve

about the cozortunities o impreve perfermance in

s wth construclor racking in ine
with our expectaticns We continue Lo review

oguoriurses for both crganic
Growth supporting our existing managerrant warns
in delivering this s

arnda \I"GI’Q&T’HC

tratesy.

Iri Cecember 2027 we have acaurred the ngkts
E25m of rght to use mobile licen
LK, thus making the first sien to

mobile viriual network operator

25 has den
ana may evolve further aver the years ah
by the gverarching importarce we place o

vetoped over ime

Curmax of business are

oad, driven

meeling the obJecweC oi our sharenolders This
hould not pe read a5 ary indicaton of 3 wro.esale

change ir the sectors i which we goerate, but as a

ref.ection of the role played oy the strategic

ma~date n protecung shareholders nigrests

ur mix of business areas has
e, driven by

the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.

(L]




Our business at a glance
What we do

Fern Tracing Limited ("Fern’)

e parent company i 3. Lending division

of nearly 320 subsidianes {(iogether the "Graup”) Our 1 We lend o a shorl ard mediurm term, securco
Group operates across five key areas, energy, ! opasiz toalarge nuraner of property profess-onals
jeaithcare, lendirg, fibre and nouse buiding. Cver I We zlso provide fnancing to erable other busin
the past twelve years we have built a carefully Polo build assets and other residential and
diversiied group of sperating businessas that are ! cormrnercia operties
well postionad ¢ deliver [ong-term value and ! ) L
P Jb . hg ' \r; ! 4. Fibre division
redictabiie growth for cur sharerolders. : . ,
P =9 oo I We own and operate fbre broadband rietwcrks
1. Energy division Dacross vancus areas of the UK Wea buitd the
We generate power from sustainable sources and i networks and cennect therr lo nemes and
sell the energy produced eismer directy 1o ndusial - busiresses (o provide cur cusiomers witn uiirafast
conswmers or Lo targe networks Many of our : fbre broadrand
renewab’e 2rergy sites guaify for goverrmer: oy .
’ & e K ! 5. Home building division
ncentves, wrIich represant an addiionat source of T, } . H ) . . _
) toDuring e year, we successiuy enteren tne nouse
ncome. We have also ubitsed our expertise in : . . I . e
I buid'ng secior azguinmg Elvia Homes which has a
rerawah e energy to Cconstruct facilities for sale o : . .
Doctrong wack recaore of developirng homes in a
oNGong ocperaisn At year end the Groug had : -, B e .
o7 iosustainanle manrer The company is a full-service
25 alles under constructon : .
1 properly developes, Mmearing it provides servicas
2. Healthcare division P Pom the des gn, o the engmeerng ard then final
We orovide homes and leisore facilines (o our i construction to ensurc the delivery of quality
ageing poculation, ana prvarte hosptals which Lowaorkmanship
provide nigh-guacty healthoare services aoross
operatonal tit2z i the UK :

Solar, wind,

; Property lending. Retirement Ultrafast fibre . :
1;:3;?5:'5 development villages, private broadband across Resrdbetl':il:[«g;house
gas. financing hospitais the UK 9

reserve power

CorsteLle
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Our business at a glance

The strength of our Group's strategy 15 11 Bt LS Lusnesses with comprehensive tusineszs plans and

operaucnal dversity and the return profie of thase Strong Management teams This enakles us 1o

bus.nesses Our lending husiness provides flex’bility conunue o dversify our busingss w tnout

and strong retures over the snort erm, whiie our comrpromising on the guality 2F our operations

erergy, hezlthocare, fibre zna home dadng Cver the past three years, we have

divisions offer visiodl ty and stabity of retuns over ectered the fibre broadband secior and we now
tne ionger term. QW S companies witn excitng plans 1o deliver '
Tne scale of our business 1 a key strength, erabing Sltratast broadband scross the UK

us to aoquire @rge-scale established ooer

well 28 the opportun.y to erter new

minamal ris< 1o the whole Grous by s

Sector split* ~ Healthcare 1%

Wond 22% ~.

Property 27%

Fern's sector
allocation

Heserve power 2%

- Sclar 1%

~--Filore 5%
Solar 20% -

Healihicare 4%

Reserde power 6% -Landfli gas ara biomass 9%

Ctiner 3% 7

Hl B Owning and operating assets 69%
B ® Lending 31%

“Sector soht 1 given by vaiue, as represented on the company baance sheet of Fern Tracing Lirmited
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Our business at a glance

Whaere we oparate
We are proud that tne busincsses !
with n cur Group mmake a positive ;
contribution to scaety. from 1
generating clesr energy o the /)‘ :

atior of Pornes and the provision :

crea
of cuatty nealthcare nfrastructure. /\\

[&5

3ic "
Wind farrrz @’gﬁ ®

e PV iy
ogarye DOWE! Bigris

OB E-r®-

-
b4

o
=]
=
m
o
D
>
O
=
A
(&)

A5 weve grown our experise i (rese seliors In she K, we've been asle 1o Lse our industry owledge 1o
/

o+
0o

He OUr exnertise o E'XC‘Y::T".Q coporiun tes o

pod

ustraua, france, ireland, Poland and rinlans,
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Our business at a glance

Maldng & differsnce
We are proLd o operaie 3 Group that makes a
nositive cantrbut on o seoety across the UK
generating renewaosle energy, provding quality

realthcare nfrastructure and retirement living ana
delvering nign-speed broadbard to underserved

f fhe country,

areas o

Energy
Ve currently own 2

ZU0 erergy stes, po
375GW a year. “Tnat’s ero

ausing
Jgn energy 1o powear over
amil. o homes

Cur compnation of technolosies soar wnd,
reserve power, biomass and .ard ges
complement each otser well, rng the UK 1o

Py

meetits energy targets irrespectve of the weather

The Ferr Community Fund s a social enterprise run
oy e Grouc,

furids generated from our wing

whicr works 1o distribute commurnity
i farms. This year, the
Fern Commurity =urd hasz awarded £1 4m (¢ local
community Groups, suppocted 13 local university
students teroughn our Student Scholarship Frind,
and oroviced a winter fuel supsidy to 706 resigents

wno ae local to the Group's assets,

Heaithcare
Our retirement villages
contemrparary iving spaces, with 378

provide h:gn-guality,
accommodation urits currently in place, ahd
schemes in varicus stages of develooment offering
over 500 additional accommogation umts

A friendly community 1s at the heart of our
revrerrent vilages, whicn s winy in cur
developmerts we prov-de central ‘acilities and a

Fuc of social activity for our residents

Lending
The loans we made dunirg the year have helped to
fund the construction of student accermmaodation

and much needed residential properties.

We continue to extend .gans to 24 taxi drivers anc
ehicles,
reducing carbon emissions i our capital

fleets to erable them to use electnc

Fibre
Through our Sbre dw
band netwaork across the LUK Four

sion we are bulding out the
finre ochic broadb
Nt teams are focussed on

Dreadband retworks far

of aur manageme
bullding out hore optir

residential customers and srall busire
fifth is building a fibre network 1o deliver enterprise
conrectyvty, Our sixth s a scfiware developmeﬂt
cempany operat ng n the fibre sector anag

providirg services 1o oL group Companies.

Within this divis.on we have plans ic create a
network oroviding connectivity ik o

ropert 23 inthe next ithree years, many of which
! ¥

o over oneg

re 1r1 smiall towns and vitages tnat con't currently
have access to nternat connectivity it for maodern

ways of working and commuricating

Not oniy are our Sore businesses Drirging

connectvity to underserved commurities, they are
aiso gereratrmg emp%oymem apporiunites for

young Individuals
apprenticeship scnemes, and
Telecoms, with one of our companies having

via traning academies and
are driving diversty in
launchad a numoer of initatives 1o recrus women

into e secor

Home building
Cur home building division utilises a high
proportion of sustainable tmber frame consiruchion

rmethods aro instass air source heat pumMps In a

propertes, leading the way i this sector and
Felping reduce ¢

carben emissions.
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Our strategy in focus

Doy businesses

Energy i gererated higner relurns this year than expected ;
Througn our energy dvision, the Croup owns and I ocue to markst conditions bat crucially it has the

operates energy stes which supply gas and ¢ potential o provide slanle returms over the long-
alecrricity into e netwark,

well g5 constructrg  § o term This combination s key (o our stralegy o

renewable energy sites for future zale Of the 220 i balance risk and «cturn aoross the range of Group
enargy sites that we own and operate, 134 orovide  § activities 1O generate target returns for shareholders !

resawable energy. conuibuting to the Groug's :
positicr as one of the argest producers of “Our energy sites generated over :

renawable erergy from cornmeria: scale sclar sies |} 3
srery e *% 1 3,750 GWh of power.” ﬁ
ir the UK Ene—rgy sites are tynically expected o :

genarate stab F? cfits for many years. as such { Due to tne Frgh-cdality energy sites we own, we !
owning ard cperatng these Dusinesses s athactive  { gre agle to secure long-term financing ‘rom
1o the Group because of trer potertal (o celver P ma ristesm barks &t coPpat TVe rates i entance

predictable profits © elong term. L our returns, which helos us o deliver the leval of |
Renewabie enc gy Sites Generals Dowser o P orendrns our srareralders exoect. ?
sustanable sources and sell erergy proguced either Jhile our renewsble energy busTiess stared ufe in 5
directly o large industrial consumers or (o the tre solar energy seatorn the Croup Fas buil
neswor<, Many of our renewabie energy sites alse exper: cent terhnologies
qualify for gmemrr:em Centves, whon resulls i a inclLding wind, oiomass and la~dhl g
portion ¢f the generated energy tenefticrg from supporied by reserve power plants whoh provide :
rates that are ocked in' for a spec-fec perlod onc ! backup oower 15 the Nat onal Gnd The Group
a qualfying s.ie s operational and accredtanon Has | reerefore penefic from dversibcatian within this :
been grarted This has reduced sore of the Impact § garp o i wesker conditions fo .
of tne veiatility in lang-term energy prce forecasts energ ore technology ofier result I

A5 ey sites bullt i the UK do not guabfy for esawrere. Tne Group aso

f “hor :
cains sigriicact bereft frorm its scalé ' ths sestor !

Fistoric government ncentives, we aré see'ng moare 1

mterest rtrie mrarket for sites uke tre ones we owrn ;s Aur BLainess s spread acrnss over 220 sites,
and gperate vastly reducing ire nisk to Group prefitability 1If one 4
Owring anc ongratng energy s:ites 5 a core part of site suffers arn operaronal Sisruption, 3
CUr sirategy anc :;urfeﬂ:ty rrakes up almost 63% of
e Group’s net assats This sart of oor Groun has !

Did you know?
if laid end to end, ocur solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

I adaition (o our UK sites, the Group 1s develaning
sites overseas, -n 1ur sd:Ctions that we understand
well, These present an attractve opportunity as they
buitd on cur sector expertee N Codntr £5 at an

carlier stage of renewabe develonment Currently
we operae wing farms nlrelang and =rance and
solar sites in France and Ausirasa We have several
wind sites under construction in Peland, France

ard Australia

LDurirg the year we acauirad nineg reserve powes
olants and one energy from waste site Following
construction, we sold two wind farms in Finiand and
shorty after the year end we also scld Dar.ington

Point, a large solar s te in Australia

Healthcare
ThroLgh cur healthcare
operates i the privaie Ted

L
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=
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SeClors.
ow/ns ard opearatas two retrement villages in
Wiltskire and Nort
deveiop.rqg three

Our retrement Lving o

N Yorkshire and s currently
furihier sies for future operatons,

Our private rmadical business,
armd operates two private nGspitals in <ent ang
Hartfordshire, providing the very best level of care
spital fagilities,

in moagara, well equipped no

One kealthcare owns

'l

errs we have

erts payirg

Since returning to

SEen an norease it th
for thesr own treaimen
Jsts far NHS treatmert, Despi £

are sector with a

cortinues 1o aﬁ@ct the acute ©

rased nfection conirs.

cre part of our bus ness

Grouo with & profitacle and

AL
o
=
Q
U
)
g
C
<
o
D
o
v
=
[

cash cenerative sector over tre past twelve years

slisned part of

ng, whicn provdes
erlenced professional

-
3
67.

@

I
Iy
o
o]

our Grouc mairly

property lend

Short—:erm ﬁnarﬁmﬂg 10 ex

oroperty developers, buy t t landlords seeking

UU

ridg rg finance; and deve.opment fnancirg,

wrich provides short and medimr term finarang

o companies

A key henefit of the scaie of our Group and of the
ousiness that we have Dull us 1IN s secior 1s our
ability 1o rnitigate nisk througn hawving a large

med um term .cars spread
borrowers. We

number of short and
across small orojects to individual
croactively manage counterparty rnisks through

undertaking careful borrower due diigence, taking

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.




Our strategy in focus

securily over a55eis rypicaly o a first charge b3

an-to-value rat
doot 2l loans wall perfiornm as expecied and ese

nd maintanng conservative |

L‘U

s

measures help to remmse tne impact of
performance issues on an ndivicua. loan. Trsis
further rrtigatec through the value that we lang 1o

irdividual borrowens, re atve (o our Tolal lGan Book,
o

which 15 currently spreac on average a

loans. with an average incividua. 'can of LZ Im,

Fibre division
Our fibre divisicn rciude

compares buildimg fbre n
ore software de

five coeraional

works im the UK ang

alopmenrt cornpany.

Trroughy our res dental Fiore bus neszes, we are

butding new phys ca’ are networks o
S and so far have built out

commidnitiss 1n the
fibre mfrastructure in wrderserved 0arts ¢

BENelal
Lomersel, f‘f)rse_n Witsare, Hamperire,

Worgestershire and the home Counties We are
arning o pass over one milicr nomes over the

next three years,

Suild g inese .a
large datacentres and @eiennac

e networ<s involves connecting
excranges in the

UK with homes and busin

s, e‘fect;ve%y
replacing the
ha'f of the 20th century, Jurass:c, Swish and

Ciganet are verticaiy integrated, as thay 5oth Gwn
the flore infrastr.ciure and also nave e end

customer resaucnshio as the intesnet service

copRer wires tnat were ad in the first

provader or TiISPT Allpoints owns hicre infrastruciure
and will onkboard cther 1508 to the Allponts retwork

tvity 1o the end cusiomer

Trircuagh Vornoss, we are oulding a nelwork n

Loraon to supply tusinesz-to-tuziness '

entararse connectivity direct 1o bus.ne
customers. Yornoss has instailed over &
fibre optc cablesin London since 207

rece~tly laurcned a single 10Ghps product to
rmarket, recogrsing thiat ambitious Lf‘r
businesses will quicky reGuire more than the *Gobps

ectvity theyve relied or i dafe

We nave seen rapid growin in our Thre division

sitce 2018 ard we expect s division @ continue

four ous ne

Sr par: o
The Group expecrs
caoital by 2025w i

MQre COMmMIUnies in res

o ospend apprexeately £1bn G

190 ds bung pans and r=acn
d of ultrafast broadband.
Home building

Elivia o a ful
:ervice housesulhaer, acquiring lardd, developing the

Our ~ew home building basmess,

e and sucsegusrily seling the homes to
nd viduai buyers Trese sitas include 3 mix of ogen
rmazket and afordaole howses ard strive 1O delver

wonal hemes Trie busnessis

Lurover of

growing fast wih projected annua
£250m and 600 houses Sult per year forecastec

]
1

with n the rext 2-3 years




Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
comrmercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills

Paul Latham & -7 o
aul ic Crief Executive of Ferm ana s resporsible for tre day-to day runrirg of the

managing director of Octopus lavesiments Limitea ("OI7,

o

LEINESS. He 15 aiso a
where he nas worked since 2005 Giis a key supolier of resource and exgerise
to Ferr Pauls dual reic ensures that this reigtionskio works effectively and in the

est nterests of Fern's shareholders. Pau! has nad varncus gonessl mansgerent

ne
and intermal consuiting les acress a rumeber of sectors and bngs witt nm

a weszlth of industry ard bus resg experience:

moan assaciate professor of strategy ana entreprenewrsip at London

holds varous non-exacJtive directorships and aavisory
25 at hign growtn and more mature comparie: {0 his role as non-executive
hairnan he is resporsitle for the effectve operation of the Board, as well

as its governance. He brings to the Fern pusiness :ndependent commercial
experience gaireqa frern hs hime i academia, privalé ecuity imvestmens,
onsulting and various Fands-on operatonal roles

Peter Barlow -~ oL o Doroe

Peter has over 30 years expernence ininternational financirg of infrastructure and energy
As 3 senor execaive for ntermational Power, Peter was respons bie for arranging over
$12bn of croect and corporate funding, 23 well as banking relaionships ana treasury
activities. He naz spent over 20 years working intemasonally for HSBC, 8ark of
Amerwca and Nomura, fingncing acquisizons ard greenfield projects in the energy
and irfrastruciure sectors His comruination of Board-evel Anancing and erergy
exgerierce r numerous energy sub-sectors, and his allbround krowiedge of
al e secicrsin wh ch Fern operates, adds significant value to the cperation of
the Board as well as s strategy formation ard deployment.

Thm Arthyr o0 w000 oD s

Tirm is a chartered accourtant with more thar 25 vears international experierce

a finance cirector of both puclc and private companies intally he worked
for Price Waterhouse in Birminghem and Chicago. More recently be was Chief
Financial Officer of Ligntsource Rerewsabie Energy Ltd a g.obal leader in the
fundirg, develogrert and long-term operation of solar photovoltaic projects
Tirn brings extersive financial and accouniancy knowledge o the Board as

well a5 an understanding of dynamic technoogy busiressas gained from Mg

executive positions
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Principal risks and uncertainties

m%mﬁpai risks

entidentify, azsess and manage risks 1 The princ.pat risks that the Group are exoosed 1o

ed with the Group's business obyectives and 1 are cescribed celow, along with the mitigating

strategy. Risks anse from extern

chons we take [0 reduce the geenta impact of

[

risks T the mar<et, tre risk. We also incluge our assessmert of whether

and from opergtioral nsks contained withn tne

which are inherert cormmercial

o [xelinood of the risk bas ircreased, decreased
systerms and grocesses employed within the r rerianed the same.
business. Overall ns« expos.re is managed across

e Group throwgn the diversilication of sctvites,

baoth by sector and geography.,

Risk Mltlgat;ons

Market risk: . C GNlracte are enterec nto winiich fix The income fr‘r
Thre energy secior s exgernercing parson of the energy gererated by cur sites
sigraficant turbutence and there s » Long-term government bacxed offtake agreemean's are

e

ns< that forecast levels of ncome in ol such as tnz Per‘ewabt ouganon Certfication

are rior achieved due o charnces In {"ROC ) screme 30% of our energy iIncome was
wholesale energy prices, off-take generated fror ROC revernue.
cortacis O goverament subsckes o We engage with “he governrment and t .ce ¢ aas and %

Due w0 ths turbuient ervironent, Elecincity Markets ("OFGEM IO contribute 10 an imdustry voice Increased
the potential for increased with DouCy maxers who set flure regulatory equireryants, ldue ’O rrarket
nterventon by e regdiator s aso Instapt.ity)

a fig<

Crarges .n Government golicy
“y 'n;utt nrecuced income
sireams withr the groups due to

add\ icnai levies

Operatlonal rlsk « Unpredictabibity of e westrer is mitigared tnroagh

Leve.s of energy produced may diversihcatior o techrolsgies 2 wd locztion of sies.

De lower than anticipaied due to + Regualar servicing of assets s uncertaker o enswre assets s
sLb-optirial weal er canditons are keptn gonj condition and munirmise the rex that =
or performance issues with assets are unavaillakle for a .onger pericd. No chatge

equigment, which may result in
sigmfcant er anned dowr tirne.

Construchon rlsk o The Grouo enters fxed orice CONracts with CONTrations

Congract on of the sites wa<ec WIIRIe aopropnate v reduce eXpoIure t0 INcreasing cosis =
ONGer Or s more Cosly than
artcipated due o resource Mo cnange

avalapiity Gr ncreased cost of




Risk Mltlgatlons

Market risk: » ~wag~frﬂrt r;utarty reviews tne ompﬂt'twe lardscape

Expected sales frorm cLsicmens in warget guila areas to ensure plans oo ot conflict with

are ower than a~tic pated due 10 other allerratiye r.ﬂfwork operators

Moreased corrpent.on rom 0iner e Managemerl ergages proactively witn the Cfhce of

orovidars Comrr;lmlcam}m and the Governimen: to ensdre the %
ber:efits of erralier operators are well undearstood and it incregsed

A Piﬂar ge I oacy by tne

rcg ators . favoLr of arger

o ratf) rS CoJ'T impact our 301ty
te: deliver plam g dévﬂtopmem
redLomg revenues and eff cienc
gzined from a larger p
pdrucular ea

nterests (q.-; o rrf‘r'>

arc 50“!'0;’)"

particulaﬁy tt WO5E repre
DREIETOTS.

sertr 1 2 ,L.u

Constructmn nsk = The Group has contracied with @ numper of differert

Cenztrutuan of the netywaork saoplers to reduce the exposura o 2 ndrviduz!

takes lenger or 15 more Costly eruty Selection of outsource partners 1s marage Increased ‘dac

tnan antizinated due to respdrce through a detai ed procurerrent process with Icm term t;;“jﬁgj{jg

avaiablity or increased cost of wisib Ity of waork allowirg gattrers 1o plan irancial an reégirce "

raw rmazerials people rescurces acoordirg’y. tne sector as

+ Where sunply cham problerss are expecied for critizal alternative

terns our teams generally have & months stock of fibre, prc,?\ihef\rf;;éale
duct and other matena.s on hend, and advarce crdar buslal

t 2C f“mma equi pmen: wm L)r'g lead Lmes

Operational risk: « Curr |efworkg are buiit in a reslent way vwi:th diverse

Network service s mterrupted of route options should a faiure occurin cne route. B
unrelabiz lead ng 1o cotental logs This, comtined weth an aoility 1o wdentify and resove e

of custorrers and reputatoral conrectivity ssues quickly, mirimices downtime of the No change

networks
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Increas:rg infauon ard nteres
rates lead to a market-wide
affcrdability 1ss i
drop in property valu
sectors of reat estate This may
‘rpact cur aniliny W recover a
war s full tnrough a refinance
or <alr

Counterparty risk;

Loans may be made 1o wnsuitable

couriders Gres, 'm“af’t ng our
oilty to recover the luaﬁ balanc
i full

Rusk

Market r:sk (Healthcare and
Home Building):

A fall in house prces could
rngact our aonty © generate
expec:e\ reverae from the sae
Cfapartments nour retrement
villages cPd Houses bult by _w 3

Construction risk (Healthcare
and Home Building}):
Construchon takes iong

more Costy thar ant c pated

B3
due

Health and Safety risk

{Healthcare]:

Tre creverticn of imjury cr

vodabie loss of of our
ateriss of utmostimasrtarce
rd ‘s Criticai W matan rg g
ood reputat’on. Litigation as

& resut-’ of medca. malpracuce

0 da’Ylan to

oﬁ:

. Heditthcare/Hame Building Divisions

Change

Mitigations

e TP

+ Theteams pro rmarage Swr positon in the
mrarkétplace and are preparec W eoce where needecf
3 toan moves inte defsait

s rnapads

« Ourloans are made at conservative 'oan-wo-value ILTV) s
. s
ratios with a maxmum LTV of 70%,
No charge
. udma'e ecurad agamftph cal underying secury,
such as a charge over the nroperty or otrér assets of the
Lorrower Those are typically ona firs! charge basis 0
ensure maximurn chance of recovery shouia enforcemeant
~tior. be reeded L
. o ence fs performed o1er S0 W tnG In o (dug
. Tno \mgr due gilgence is perfonmed 01or W owr Ung Fabante
loans, Im¢l —dimg oroperty o land valuations ard Credi: ecorsrmic
rrecks d Om BOTTOWETS clumate)

Where loars are writtar for assets undar construct.on,
mestones and COvenanis are DUl 1n place to ensura
stag re Lumplcm ohor o releasing fur t? er drawa:wm

Mitigations

« Planning corsents or undeveldced arc are ootmised to
maxirn se revenues and reduce the risk of 05323 on sale %
ncreaszed due
O unstanle
2CONOMIC
chmatel
= The Groug enters fixed grice conracts where approprnalie
to reduce exDosure (O INCreasng rmatenat costs
e Tre Grodn only works witn reoutab & 3rd partes with 3 ]
strang rack recore of deliverng s ar srojects Siocraeos
8 ng SN MoNetak tafel-

o Tne Groun mantg

relaung to the provisicn of
trrougr conoLcirg ng alar

3.50 tubect 1 externa 1MS0EC
« Tne Zrouc has nsurance ool
firanciai 'osces due to medical m
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Principal risks and uncertainties

gations

» Wnrere foating rate debtis nplace {where interest varies
in line with an underlying oenchmark rarel. the Group

a = enters imo hedging anangements to fix a portor. of these .
irnpacing tne Groug's abilty to payments thronghout the term of the faciiyy Hedging 'aue o 1
service gebt as it falls due. arrangements are cuthred in Note 20 ¢f the finarcal inierest rates)

statermerts

iquidity risk: + A detalled casn fiow forecast iz prepared and revicwed

-

Foor managemert of cash w thin Ly maragement on 2 montaly basis, incorporating casn

the Grous could impact the avalabilty and cash requirements acrozs the Group. On at

Group's ability 1o mnect obiigations lwast a quarteqy bass this s shared witn the Board

as noy fai due + The Group moniars bark covenants on an ongomng basis s

. ; . o P
G ensure contnued adierencse o covenants. Wnere

. O Crange
cavenants can't be met, torecasts are Jodated for the No crange

lower cash avaiab.e as a Gf the restriction
« The Group has a flexibie fnance facility which can be

i
drawn on at short nolice & meel mrediate buginess

rieeds
Health and Safety risk: « No have deveoped robust bealth ard safety polices e
Tre safety of cur employees compliance with *5025G01 across ine Group Lo ersure
anc those empicyed through the well-beng of our staff ,;%
contracts are of paramoun: « Heaitr and safety traring is provided to cur staff and
impcrtance There s 3 nsk that corractors o a regular bac's Increased

accidents in the workp.acs could
reSLLT N SerOus rjury Or ceath.

Cyber Security risk:
An attack on our 1T systerns and
data could lead to d'sruptior repons
of cur aperaicons and loss of .

customer ¢aza. Loss or mis se adegua
of data may result in reputational manag
damage, requiaiory acton under + Cach o
SOPR and ootent al ines

S
feceod

NG change

o

rce for il and securty

e
L=
i3
N eX
I

The strategic report was approves by the Board of Lirecters on 16 December 2022 and signed on itz behaf by

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022
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Corporate governance

Section 172 (1] siatement

Trne Board consider that they have adnereg to the

requirernents of secnon 172 of e Comparnies Act
2006 dhe "Acl’), 2nd have, in good faitk, acted m &
way tnat would be most kely to promote the

ccess of the Group for the benefit of its members
as a whaie (having regard © ali stakerc ders ard
maiters set ous in section 172(00a-f; of the Act)
N the decisions taxer durng the year endeco

20 Jura 2022,

Ir the cerformance of (1o duly 10 romote the
sucress of the Groun, the Board has regard o a
numoer of matiers, ing Eucmg the lixely

conseda2n

of arny decisons i the wong err, and

—

listens to tng views of the Gre

sup s key stakehelders
o build trust arg ensure  fuly dnderstands the
s of the

ac decisors .t makes, The
Board fulfls these duties

partly by delegation
commutteas ard the boards of sunsidiary

potential imp

undertzkings, who operate within a corporate

governance framewaork across the Group.

At every Soard meehting a review of hezlth and

safety across the group, finandia, a~d coeratiora
cerforrarce, as well as legal 20d regutatory

cormgiance, is Lnderiaken. The 3oard also revew

omer areas aver the cousze of the Snancia. year
meuding tre Group's business strategy, <y nsxs,
stakenc.der-related matters, dversty and inciLavty,
emvironmerial matters, Ccorporate responsiblty, and

govarnance, cormpliance and 2gal matters

=

Principal decisions
We ¢efne principal decisions taken by tre Board az
&t are o

those dedis.ors th a strate

tratare sgriicant o any of Sur ik

grouns, ~he Beard consicer that the folowing are

o

rarpies of onncipal decisicrs

enged 20 Juns 2022

Trrade nthe year

. Evaluamg snd decd rgto mMove a
icreasing wind cperaliors, wruch 12 part of

cur remewab 23 dvisicn ' August 2021 e

Group ac
wind site ' Austraba Thsc "p‘o)/ et
with the Group's strat

davelop renewanle €7

drred a large zscaie ready 1o Construct

prad:iclabye, Wng 2rm reverus streams. The
Bosrd considered tre opporturity ang how :t
aligned with cur objeciives

ontribution o t1

O maxe a positve
e community and ervironment

Thne Group dec.cec o expand e our nawes?
division. house bunchs g, in May 2022 the Groug

aCquired Eliva homes, a ful' -serv.ce oroperty

velCpern OrovICINg serv Ces frorm the getign,
o the eng neenrg and then fral construchor

tc ensure the aslvery of cualty workmanship,

Diversifying the Group's asset case and enter ng

irtc this new sector has beer wel thought

out with iong term grow:h e mng. The Board
assessed the strategic opoortarities within 1g
sector before ceciding to move ahead with this
acgu sition, considernrg how this would impact
existing ousiressos within the divsor and now
it aligned witn the Group's strategic ohecrives W
delver long-term value ard oredictanle growtn

for our sharebolders

Reviewing and deciding o move angad wih
ncreasing biomass operatior: wh ch is part of
cur renewzbles divsion In Goeber 2022 the
Group acquirad a large scale, wasle-lo-energy
construct o ste i Scotiana Tois decloyment

ligns with the Group's strategy to corinug 1o
diversify the chw 1D develop rerewanle energy
r_\

revenue streams, and provide
wholesaie pr ong changss in ine UK energy

mMarke: T he Zcard carsicerad the opporiumiy

and how 1t aigred wih cur Spjecuves o

~ake 3 postve corgunion C the cormrmun ty

and envrommeans
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Corporate governance

« Thar
tender process for the year ended 30 Junz 2022
The Croup had changed sigruficantly since the

appointed and thereiore

for

sard decided to change audit irms viz a

uditors wers

Drev:oUs a
zre urable to relfably aisess tne vae
received Three f

rers danderywent

the tender process and st & Young LLP were

se of their strong comme-cial

T our business, efficient gudit

o)
)
5,
(@3
0
l;)

% aﬂd value for maoney.

Business strategy
Our business strate
the Strateg)
detailed Group nudget whick s aporovec by the
Board on an anqua. basic and forms the paws for
the Group's resaurce plan~ing and deglcyment
decisions erning the
oJsiress plan, the Board has regard first ano
strateg:c focus, but a.sc t© other

sllto 14 of

< Regort. Management orepareg a

a2y iz set out on Lages

rmaking decsions cong

foremaost 1o its
of Itz varcus
act ofits

matters such as the mteresis «

stakehaoiders 2nd the long-term img

acions on the Group's future and reputation.

Shareholders

Snareholder relations ard generating sharehsloer
value is a xey considerat on when the Scarg s
ons. Tne prime madium oy

Jed)s

raking sirategic
which the Group commuricates with smarehotders
is through the annual repart and Ainancial

statentents, which a'm (o provide shareholders with
z full understarding of the Group's activiies and s
results. This information s puslisned on our website

at www.ferntrading.com.
Employees

The Group’s ermn
ess of trie business. The Directors *ulfl

cloyeas are fundarnental to the
overall succ
their duty to emp
subsid: ary E
Group also

oyeas by entrusting oversight to
ards whic~ the Ch &f Executive of the

S Qn

The cirectors of the 5ub§:dwc,ry undertaxings

manage The day to day decisicn making,

4N

ngagement and coramunicatons with employees

nd ensure that peopke are rested falrly ang are

valued with respect 1o pay, beneft ard condiions
o fuly realise that our ermployees vash to be

informed ang consulted on matters affecurg ther
work and to be involved in proslem-salving

affecting treir own areac of nteresr and

res Jor‘\i;lb\i:ty Te

s frmiy commitied o a

podsy of good commu 'caricvﬂ at all ievels and we
anm o establst 2 clmate wnich corstantly

encourages the open flow of mf:)rmatéor and
d L

ideas. Presently ths
atl a local level and d“e pusticanon of rmonthly key

ricludes rmonth.y team briefings

porformance indicators covermg culput, operating

cosis, arg health ard safety.

Tne health and satety of our emiployees in the

worKpace ‘s a continual focus for the Group, gaven
13 broad operational bhusiness. Tne Directors review
Hezltn & Safety Reporting at each board meeling 1o

uropna 2 pohmn* anG procedures are in

£ heaith and sa‘ely of our
cortractors Where there are

( deficiencies or 1ssues, these are fouowed
ugp anc resolved on a tmely bass, with the Board

naving oversicht of the actons faken.

The Group cutsources actvites arnd managemen:
of cerain pe'afio ral activities to external suppliers
Where actviies are cutsourced the Board ensures

that they are managed by reputable supphiers who

ieet all the relevant irdustry ard regula ory
commitments as well as treating employees fairly
Expected slandsards are documented in atl service

contracts and acherence 1o these are conitinally

moriered by Board through tneir service

agresment with Ceopus Irvestimerts arted.

Suppliers and customers
The
and customers and seeks to mainta n sirong
cusiness relatonships with them. This is achieved
ty ali contracts beng regotated through a fair and
trarsparent tender process which inciu

ass2ssing ne iMmpact on the

Group acis in a fair manner witn all supplers

lpe
JdCes

long-term opjectives of
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Corporate governance

the Group We revisw our payment Lrocessng
trmes against contracts every s months to ensure
subpliers are paid promipily and this inforrmation for
tne company s avalable on the www.gov.uk

weosiie,

The Groug ensares it acts farly and i a ransparent
rmanner to al cusiomers across gl avisions anc
services, and actvely engages o resclve any disputes
or defallis
metr

- The Boara closely moniiors custormer

ard engages wiin the maragement team to
Lnderstara the issues i business performarce coes
rct mest Customers expectations.

ne Board considers OClopus Investrmenis Lmited
£ & K2y BuSINESS partner and sUoEier veth

respansibility for the proy:

operatonal
oversignt, inancial aorministration and comeany

Community and environment
The p ovision and operation of sustaranle

5 a1 the cenre of the Croug's
strateg.c goats. Thraugh s business achvities the
©to the
ent and econcormy ur

ake g positive contribut.o
OI’T‘-FT'\U"TET‘/, 2rvironm

remeywakle ""M—"'g_y DusIness Is hei;}lr“g the LK meer

have supported the ‘eHS Lr'rouqhout e yov‘dflg
panderiic py providing reatment for ron-Covid-138
NHS patienrs that ctherwise colld net have been

carried cut, and cur fibre retwerowll give paopic
i rural comrunities acce
broadoand

35 to nigh-speed

Business conduct

As Directors our ntenuon s o belrave respons

F

reegrty ard in accordacce wiih e bigh slandards

ENsSUnng Manage e CLErse the butness wit

Lt <

governance cxpectad of a business

tertion through aur bJsiness
251l 1ﬁ1 t5 (o operate n
nesses trat share

Business ethics and governance

i Tre 2eard 1= rezpoasbe for ensunng that the
actiities of the Group and its varicus businesses are
corducted .0 compliance with the law and
applicable goverrance and requ.atary regires, and
1o adnersnce with orevailirg best pract ce for the

P orelevant indostry This incl

Jdes reviewing inernal

cantrols, ensurng ithar there s an approoriste

¢ okalance of skils and excenence represered o the
¢ Beard, and ensur nig trat the fnancial siatements
aive a true and a1 view o the state of affairs of the

i Group. Further detail can be

of direc

resporsic Iite

(o)

20 June 2072 ro areas ¢

flagged in trus regarc

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
! and bribery matters

The Board's oolicy on empioyee, naman rghts,

socia. and com™Munity SSURs, ervirornment oo
and anti-corrusuor ard oribery mattars s ciso

i the Drecrors Rego

rton page Z5. Tre Bo

achively prorreies a corporate cullure that s based
P ooneth cal values and befhaviours




Group finance review

Review of financis! statemernts

The purpose of this regort 15 1o provide additiora,
explanatory formation or the financial statements
[ rmeasurng Qur performarce, ne frnizncal
rreasures that we use Include those that hiave ceen
derved from cur reported resulis in order to

elim nate facrors that distort year-cr-year

corrparisons, T
finarcial m

Py

Coh

LIESs,

i the share nnce ard may not reflect changss i the
Pofall marketvawe & owned by

D othe Group.

iA nurher of acquizitons were miade dunng the
Loyear ncuding rine operational reserve power e,

4 waste o energy site under construciion, a

construction ready wind farrm in Astraiia and

seventeen solar roofion sites unger construct.on,

A reconclialion of these to the financial results can Shortly after the year erd, in JuE/ 2022 we sold
be fourd in note 28 of the rotes o the hinanaia! i Darlington Panit, a large solar site in Adstralia
staterrents ‘ .
: P Te supsort continued expangion. we msd built up
The financial statements sTow 253e7s at Cost, as such | cash reserves at year end of £256m whicn noluded
thoy do not refiecs cvelue That we expeciic | a large casn inflow of £97r from g acing externat
darwe from thase cus nesses To that extent Porefinancing ir Darlingier Point pricr 1o sale
ACCOLNEng ;Jerff rrance may differ matenally from
{restated) Movement
2022 2021
£°000 f.’OOO £'000 %
Rﬂvenuv 711,830 425 302 ?86,528 £7%
P' 194, 916 104 036 97,880 87%
P uﬁt (Io be’ore 1ax 47’ 604 (22 663) 70,267 310%
L nd: ng f\ow ’mﬂ-t of pfows ons) 360 901 385 512 24 611} (5%
256,415 !.72 478 52,927 45%
793,169 699 440 ‘3% U“ 13%
Nef Asse 2,219,448 1, 887 842 331,6@7 152

Financial performance
OQwerztl, the Group has reporte
£476m for the year ended 30 Jm 2022 which s a

£70.2m improvemer‘.t or the prior year (2021,

£22 7m loss restated]. Overall EBITDA  increased by
7% to £198n EZC?L £ 104 restates) which i
onmarnly due to ncreased energy generation as well

as Increased energy prices.
Reverue iroreased by £287m to £712m (2021

‘Earnings before nterest, tax, gepreciEaon and arrornsal on

f£4257}) wh ch was precominanty driver: by a 84%

INcrease n revende withir our engrgy division. Trus

growtn s two fod Ircreased enargy generaticn

from having owned/operated one of cur biomass
olants for the full year and a large solar plant in

Australia reaching commissioning, and a sigrnificant

NCrease N average energy prices over tre year due

to the misrnatch between supply and demand,

exaceroated oy the ongaing conflict ir Ukraine.
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Revenue growth was strongest in aur encrgy
divis'cn but we also sew a rmarked improvernent in
reveriue from our retrerment villages This part of
our business has rebounded well from the
lockdowns regured by the Covid-19 panderi ¢
resnonae, seling 41 units in the ye:
S2%) and an increasing in revenue of £7.5m to

£20.4m (2021 £22 7m).

Revenue from cur lending division saw a drop of
25% to £42m 20210 £57n0) due to a smaler average

oan Lock over tne year as cash was macde available

to grow other parts of the business,

niges for the yesr werg i bng with
witry the ncrease primariy doven
our fibre diy sion as
aclt o

s over the past two years hias

2ranng costs o
it has ¢ qur*‘rd mef“r}ancrng axternal

eCure IMprove err

contributed 1o a decrease 10 interes cosis of £7 5y

to E32 8m (2021 £26 1m).

included in the resuils thas year 1s a profit of £287n
recognised o the sale of two wird farms in Finlend
and a realzation of EL.em of deferrea consideration

On solar sies soud N previous years,

Financial position
Ceonrnued sharehclder intarast and nvestrrent hao
21 F1 BE8m

estated! In the year e~ded 30 June 2022, we

seen ret asiets grow 1o £2,215m (20
issued 120m shares (2021 15Cm) for a total
cersicarst:on of £204m (2021 £2,3.7m) The
S3m of

aroud resiruciunr ng

comparative year numbers nclude £2.2

consiceraton relating (o

o Seeaa

Net currert aszels of £208m (2021 £663m restated)

nave increased by :qurw reflect.ng tre reduction i

externzl ina~cing a~d a~ rorease in work in prograss

witnin the Abre ard Fouse buldirg dvisions Gur loar
boox o propety lending ~as decreasea by 6% ¢
£261m (2021 E380m, a-a at 50 Jure 2022
regresented 16% tassets (2321 21%)

Ca 130 June 2622 were

operating activit es decreased to £42m (2021
E342m) whick has been ulilised alongside externa.
long-terr: friancing and capitai raised by riew share
igsues o grow the pusiness We have irvested
substantially nto the Nbre groadband sector over
tre past four years which will require further capial
expenditure over the <ext 3-5 years increa
diversification across seciors

Sy our

Of the cask helo at year end. £211m was held .n
our energy, home build ng and 9bre subsidiaries
where there are a number of constructior and
nfrastracture proects under way, reqwir:g cashto

be readity avaiable for stage payments due in the

rnonths after year end,

54tm (2021
contndes to be a sgniacant number on the
halance sheet a
busrosses
rerewapls

£567m restateg

ated:
nd z7ses an the acquisiton of some
Acguired businesses, for exarnple
enesgy stes, often rave a market value
1 excess of the compary's net assets, retectirg
trer relabe fu

Lare income sireams  Accouning
corvorthen requres that only ident’fable assets are
rarrcd on the balance sheet so the accounts
canro recors e balarce of the adgtional mark
value wh ch comprizes the future profits that sites
are expecten to deliver The addinonal value n
excess of fae value of fixed assets thermseives (such

as zola pane.sh s recognised as gootwil.

Put sirply, the market vawge of the erergy

cenerat on businesses {or ndeed any cperatoral
businesses; reflects the vawe of future expectea

profts, not the coct of simply buying tangizle assets
SUCH as 30.a7 panels or wird turb nes. We pay

arrel value fo the stes we a

Tauire,

b "y

xceed the va Le of wcertfab.e

Q]

S

as
¢ s0 generates Qoo

2]

clar panels an
essentaly represernts tha valle of ©
futre ‘nccme strearms Soodw il re
gradually e written of”, typ czlly ove

are realised.

site, as expected relurms
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Sector performance

(20Z21: E156m restated), parfiaiy ar ven by increased

site costs wiere £120m was incurred &7 our
biomass sites ard £93mr at our reserve power sites,

Energy

As econcmic activity and global demand nereazed
throug‘hou? the year, ¢ too did whalesale ensrgy
the prices for raw materials Fave increasec, on
average, by 69% due 1o an increase in the supply

onces, driven Ly movemients in comrmadity prices,
which resultee 1n the overall noreaze in revenue
cosis. The combiced cost of sates for the reserve
noyer and hicmons sies ncreased by [110710 Lo
£217rn (2021 207m) 1t shoula ge noted that the
revenue gmerm ed by the iomass and reserve
cower sites increased by E“_92 durng tre year to
£355m ”021 F161mi.

arned 20ress our energy sites. These marker
f“c 3 have resulied it an naorease in revenng of
Q4% to LE92m (2021 £322m)
Corespondingly, EBITOA alsc increased by 112% o

E266rn (2021 £126m resiated] reflecing the

sigrficant Increase ir energy reverua Overal total @
g costs nigreased by £230m to _32?m

FY2022 FY2021 Fy2022 FY2021
Production Production External External
(MWh) {MWh} Availability Avallaballty
1 050 038 886,557 84.6% 82 2%
240,226 256,026 97.9% 97 6%
403,355 141,084 94.2% 97 0%
Solar 554,858 517112 97.7% 9€ 0%
851,214 90.5% 93 1%
Total 3,099,690 2 682, 019

S eimn
wr&a'émséwzx;;gp o
ekt i
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Healthcare

Heathcare ooerations contriputad £46m
(2021 £42m) to Croup reverues for the yea
reflecting tre impact
Rangeford nts gt the reurement
vilages nave rencunded weli from the locxdowns
requirec by the Covid-19 panderic response,
seling 41 units in the year lan increase of 52% from
2021j and increasing revenus by £7.6m tg £20.2m
(2021 £127m)

t of increased revenue in

Sates of apart;

Lending
Reverue from lending decreased hy £14rm w0 £42m

(2023 £57/m) primarily due 1o a smaller average

loan pock for 2072 wrich res

ne total loan boox

revenua stream for the year

rediiced Dy % o £381m at tne year end (2020
ananles

8&m) This reduct.on in the loan book
$71 10 e avaiable for opporturities 3cross ather

3
ca
sectors withur the Group rcluding acouisition: and
Craruction. The meke-up of the lcan bock nas

ﬂ

shifted sligrtly where we have issued a

numper of smaller loans within the residencal

sector, as we.. as more a-ger [cans in the

ector and the commercial cecior

developmant
ELITDA for tne iending arvision decrea Lo
of £8 7rn from a profit of nearly £1r i the on
year. T movement reflects a nrovison of £

atoss

25m in
tre loar: book aganst loans to reserve power siles
and a provision against a ~ealthcare loa~ of £14m.
n e year to Jurie 2022, £39m was prov ded

agairst icans versys £24m 0 1ne prior year.

Fibre

avis on aiso incurs large operating expenses as the
businesses scale e
marke: prezence Overal, tre division re
EBITDA loss of 55 4 |

is 1 lire with excec

ir operations ano develep
ported an

y [
W eiCn

tnese netwarks out, the assais will be

recognises on the balance sheet at ost which
cannot Inciude futl xaue which s expeciad W be
generated ag the a9s2ts have bean internzly
generated. This s diffarent to the shase price whae
te future value expected to e generated from tre

asaets s ncluded
Home building

Elvia Homes was acquired » May 2022 and has
therefore had Urnited impact on the financ ai
performnance dunng tee year The business is
forecast tc detiver £78m revariue and £6 511
EBITDA for the

from the first quarter of 2023 ingicate the business

~ar ended 30 June 2023 Resuits

s oro du performing in ine witn expectat.on

Funding and liquidity

Car strataqy 15 10 secure 1ung term “nancirg at
consarvauve wevels frorm mansirear banks 1o
erhance relurrs from our renewable energy
bs nesses At year ena we riad £2.044m of

external pro A4 of

fnarcimng with

headroom avalable

This enables us W acguire businesses tnat ihe

rmarxet considers (¢ have stable charalleristcs such

ﬂex‘c;% % Zm
as flow We beleve that f

strategy wolld nave a negaty

ﬁ
(]
=
=
5
w
~
3
[
i
]
o
T
3
S
Q
e
~
-

0% cf our imterest payatie 15 fixed

aﬂ.d thereforz we are nct o gricartly exposed o

:
i
H
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the current imterest rate volatlity We contnuaily

revievy 1ancing arrangements to ersare that they
are competitive and optimised for the needs of the
busi
rnanncs, we maititan a Tlem & finance faciuty

nest 1o ersure casr s managed in ar agile
wich can ba drawr dow™ or repaid 1o meet

Irmmediaie business Neads.

Looking ahead

The Groug has rebounned well from the effecis of
the Covid-19 pandemic and has outperformed

s Whilstthe ¢
nd uncertainty, we arhonaie

exp%ctat slp current econsmis outloo<
_rallenge a
mitimal mpact or our resuls due to tne

| cost base, and

our activites Codp.ed with the

pred cltable revenue strearrs and
essent al nature of
diversif cation we have built uo across the Susiness,
turbulent

we are positioned strongly for these

times ahes

We continue to pay pacticuiar attention to the twn
chailenges of ris.ng Interest rates and swrging

iding and porfolo
managemeni. [nese trerds !mpa:{ all areas of the

inflation — botr in terms of e
Group's buzness and are Likely to remain for the

foreseeab.e future, so we remain disciplined in cur

0 monitor the

rt approach to

INvestmert approach, continuing
fand t

any cJrrert anc emerging risks,

situaticn carefusly aking a prude

We are positive about the continuad opnorturtty
for growin and continue to believe that the
busness is gositioned well 10 take advardage o
future growth opporturities ac-oss s core business
areas, Erergy, iending and house puilding
operations are well 2stablished in the market and
conunue to maxe excelent progress with rebust
perforrnances in the rnew financal year. In line with
olanned strateqgy, since the year end we scld a
targe solar farm 11 Australia for a smail proft, with
ads being redepioyed into rew opporiunities.

Our

proo

L0l 2ntin ibre contnues toroll o ineg
Deployment into fibre cont nues to roll cut in ing

witn expectat ons and the Growp nas now passed
rrore than 150,00
Sales act.v:ety N our healtncars cvisic
strong, with nearly 40%

a\reaf‘” com p lated or razerved across all
the end of Sep

0 homes by our fibre networks

I rernans

ot annual saies budaet
stes as at

nrernber

within tha auturn statement az part of
thre UK
y CElectricity G
sale energy market

of E75/MWn Thsis expected O
3pEy 0 the Groupg frorm 1 January 2023 to 31
March 2028 Tre exact legislation wi'l be pube shec
n mid-Cecember 2022, but pased on the intial

e an impact anatysis has beer performed

as at 30 Septermier 20272 We
to be a cdrop in valuation of aporoximately £45m
for tie sites affected, whicn controutea 1o a
2.0p decrease in the share price t 177.0p N

Announced
he 2023 Finance B, Goverrment will
enact a 457 wandfail lev Genearator
whiole

vy or "EGL o
revenuUes iIn excess

esumate the impact

YWe expect 1o generate g
from our esiabushed divisions for
in addirion to the anticipated cutflows ‘or our
construction phase assets The nealthcare and
fibre dvisions are well into thair buld phase in Lne

rong operaing refturns

the comming years,

with cur iong-term strategy and we antic.pate
strong returns over the next five 1o seven years

upan maturity,

PS Latham
Director
16 Decemper 2022
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022

Rar 2 surmmary of the Groug's res..is, refer to the P The Groug's cpjectives and policies on Fnancial ris<
Gr cup finarce rev.ew on page 23. P omaragerrent inclding inforration on the

exposure of the Group 1o cred:t risks, Fgaidity ros
and marke! ricks are set oulin note 21 ko the
financiail staterments The Groun's principal rsks are
set Ul In ine strategic report on page 16

Tre directors nave not reccmmandad payment of
a cividend 12021, NIl

Tre daectors of the Company who were v office P o T T
dur

g the year anae up to tre date of signing the

IoAs perrmittes by sector 4i4de (11 of the Corpanies
fnancial staterments were; : o
oAct 2006, tho dire s have glected to aisclose

FS Latharn rformatcn requrad to be in ine gireciorns report

KJ Willey by Schedule 7 of the "Large ard Med'um-sized
Companies anc Groups (Accounts and Reporis)

7 3 2
PG Barow Regulaton: 2008 1 tre strategic repart

T Arthur {fappoirted 1 July 2022)

Refer to role 23 11 the Notes o re frarcial : The Soard recogmses hat & corporate culiure

craternents. based an scunao ethical vaides ang tehaviodrs is an
Doassel Tne Group erdeavours o conduct s

TR e Y N e s e O P busmess with regrty, inan etrucal, professiona,

and resSEONsne mancer, realing our 2mrployees

Refer 1o the Strategic Report on psge &

CUSICMErs, sunolers and parmners with o 'FTCS‘]

e i oangrespect

o

Applicatons for ermpoyment by disabies person
1 oare gven full ad far consigeratior for att

P ovazarcies, hav ng regard o thair partcu.ar & ’p des
! and abilities Snould a nerzon becoTe disab
Powinle e Groun's employment, every ef.‘om 5

Pomade o retar therr 1T errpaoy™ienl gy rg

ative frainirg as necestary




e
]

3 | GOVERNANCE
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We “ully realise trat cur employees wish 1o be

ur

informed and consulted on matiers affect ng ther
wiork and ta be invalvea in proctem-solving atfecting

their own areas of interest and responsisiuty

Ll

The Group s irely commitied 10 a podcy of goo
commun.cation at ail levels and we airn to estakblsn
a2 climate which conzstanty erougtes the open
flow of information and heas. Frasently this
includes monthiy tearn briefings at & 'ocal level and
the publication of mortnly key performance

Indicato

re covering cutput, operating costs aﬂd

keath ard safety.

P I NN

The Grouo has i place an agreement with OClopus

Investiments Lirmited to provide services to the

Group covenng operational oversignt,

adrmiriztraton, company secretaral and company
SCOLNNNG

The Board aaopted a formiat e—qvirommentai soCial
and cerporate governance ["'ESGT policy on
20 September 2020, The Group v
need te conductits business, in a manaer that s

respons.ble to

ogrises the

the environmend, wherever possible.

As a low emergy user, the Compary has elected not

close data onits energy and carbon usage.
Fern Traamg Limited is the only Company in the
Graoup that meets the reporting criteria and
therafcre nainformation 15 provided for the Groun
as 2 whole

The Group's has an Anti-Sribery Policy whico

inroduced robust procegures (o ensure f'u%l

ompliance with the Brihery Act 2010 &
that the highest stancards of profession l ethncal
conduct are raintared.

In accordance with the recommendarons of The LK
Corporate Governance Coue, the Board nas

corcideraa the arrangamants in place (o encourage
staff of

concerns, in confidence, witnin their oraamsatiom

arcLp or manager of the Group to raise

anout possble inprepneres in maiters of inancial

reparting or othier matiers, [Uic <atishceo ot adcguate
arrangerents are in place to alow an indeperdant

Foonvestigation, ard fodow or action where necessary,
to take place within the crgam.sation

i We are commeted to actirg eth'caly anc witr
irtegrity @ all our business dealirgs and
relationships ard to Imosiementing and enforcing
effectve zystemns and controis o ersure modernr
stavery 1s not akng place anywnere in ouUr owr
DoDUSINess or i any of our supply chains, consistent
with cur ¢blgations under the Modern Siavery Act
2015 We expect the same high stancards from zll

of our contractors, suppliers and otrer LUsSNess
partners As part of cur cortracting orocesses, we
rmcly wiih the Modern

expect our suppliers to <o
Slavery Act 2015

<ible for preparing the
rancial t EmMents in

"
accordance with apphcable law and regulation.

Company law reguires the directors G pregare

rments for each financ:at year Urder

hnancial state
trat aw the cireciors have prepared ne Group and
Company financiat stalements in accordance with
Un:ted Xingdom G ratly Accepted Accounting
Fractice (Unted K ngd T Accounting Stardards,
armpnsing RS 102 "Tne Financial Report:ng
Qtdrdam applicable in the UK and Republc of

Irefand’. and opc able law). Under company aw
tme drectors mus oprove the finzncial
staternents unigss they are satisfed tnat they give a




=

wus and fair view of the state of affa re of the Group

and Company and of the ,Jr’mt or loss of the Croup
and Comgany for that peaocd. in oreparing the
fnanciai statements, the directors are reguired o

select sutable acoounting polces and then apo.y

therm consiziently,

« state wnetner applicasle Un'ted Kingoomr
Accounting

Standargs, comprizng FRS 102 nave

beer foilowed, subject to any material ceparuures
) Y

discloteq and explained in the franca.

staternenis;

accourt ng estimates that

are reasconadle and prudent and

the finarcal ziaterments on tne geing

.

concern Sasis unles : irapproprate to

presume that the Croup ard Comzmany wil

CONTNUE N oUSINess

ctors are a.50 resporsinle for safeguard.rg

s of the Gro up and Comoany and bence

reasonaoie steps for the prevent cn and

detection of fraud and other rrequiantics

Tne directors are resoonsible for keeping adecuate
accounting records that arc suficent o show anc
“orananty s transaciors and
distlose with reasonable accuracy at ary time the
fAnancial position of thie G
enable them to ensure @

exslairn the Group ang Cc

at the fnancal sidtemenis
comply with the Compan:ez Lot 2006

The di ~zible for the maritenance

and integrity of the C TEany's wetsite Legislaton
in tne Unied Kingdom o
and dissemimation of firan

YO IR SISIAT O In ather unsciclions

rectors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

T

As cermitied by the Articles of Asscoiation, the
drectors have the beneht of an indemnity which 18
a qualifymg tnird-party indernnity provisionr as
deqned oy section 234 o the Companies Act 2004
The ndemnity was Ir force throughout the las

finaricia: year and 1s currently in force

In the case of each director in office at the dae the
srectors’ Reportis approved:

e 50 far az the cirector 8 aware

thee 2
aJdhit infarmeton of which :he GroLn and

Companry's auditors are uraware, and

e Group and

This confirmation is given and shoud be inerpretea
in accordance wih the provisions of section 418 of
! she Companies Act 2006

- L L

ozt &

: oung .LF havng pesn agpoirtes in 2022

i have indicated e willmgnass to be reappomted

P for anotner terr and will be progosed for re-

! zpoc ntment i accordance weth section 485 of the
I Companies Act 2008

1 The Directors’ resort was approvad by Board of
P Direciors on 16 December 2022 arg signed or s

P benalf by

PS Latham

Cc:m 3ETY'S aufjitors e aware of that information,
pary

1
H




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinion

We have aud-ted the fnancial statements of Fern
Trading Limisted (the Farent Company’] ana it
subsidianes the Group’) for the year ended 30
June 2022 wh ch comorice the Groug Staterrent of
oup and Farent

Group Staterrent of

Comprehensive Income, toe Gr
Compaw Saance Snesl, the
o
LAas

Cha

Group and Farert Statement of

Flowes, tne
arces I E uty ard the relatec notes 1t 29,
ncludirg a surnmary of
oolcies The financia, reporting framework that has
been applied in ther pregaraticn is apphcabl
and Unit
ncluding FRS
Standard acp. mab
ireand” Lnited Kingdom G
Accounting Praciice)

sigruficant accounting
> lawy
ed hmcdom Accourting Standards

""" Fe Financial Reporurg

in the UK and Reoublic of
eneraly Acceptea
nour opinor, tne financial statements:

ve arue and far view of the Groups a

aQ
8]
=
=5
6]

i mpaﬁy's a?“faws a< at 30 e 20727
rae

un
or the year tnen

ne Group's pron ar

+ have peen procerly pregared in accardance with
United Kingdomr Generally Accepted Accountng

Fractice and

ared In aooordance with the

—
(%)

its of the Companies Act 2006

+ hgve peen prepa
en

requirerm

Basis for opinion
We cenducted our audit in accordance with
Interratonat Standards on Audit ng (LK) (1ISAs [UK)
ard applicabie law Cur responsibilties under triose
standards are Turther descrbed in the Auditor’s
responsinilities for the audit of the financal
statements section of our repart We are
dependent of the Group in accordance with the
ethical reauiremeants that are relevant t© our audit of
the firancia: statements in the UK, mcluding the
FRC's ethical Standara, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsiblties in accordance with
these reguirements

We believe that the audit evidence we have
chtained ‘s sufficiert and appregrate o provide &

pasis for our opiriorn.

te, we have
:‘(‘I’Wg
corncern basis of accountng in the preparaton of
@ financial statements is appropnate

Lsiaemen

eotory use of e

Based on the work we have performead, we rave
not wdemt:red ary matenal uncertainties relating o
everts or conditicrs that, mndivic :‘ualty or coliechively,
may Cast s'gnifcant doust on the Group and Parent
Company's ability 1o continde as a gamng concearr
for a penod of twelve rmmonths from wnen the

financal staterments are author sed for jssue.

Crur responsitilties and the responsit lues of
the drectors with g concearr

are desaribed

respect 1o going
ctone

report. However, because not all future events or

condtions car be precicteq, this statemenrt s net a

N tre relevant se of ths

guarantee as to the Groug's amlity to contnue as &

gong concen.

Cther information

rie oter information comprises the ‘nformation
included in the arnual report, other than the
financial staterments and our auditor's report,
Fe drectars are responsible for the other
ion contained with.n the annual report.

thereon T
informat,

Cur opinion on the Arancal statements does not
cover the other information and, except o the

extent otherwse explicitly stated in this report, we
do not express any form of assurance <o

thereon

SNCUSION

Qurre
and, in doing sc, consider whether the other
nformation is mate-ially :rconsistent with the
ned i

sponsikility s to read the other nformauocn

financial staterrents or our knowledge obita

A Aﬁ -
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31 COVERNANCE

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the course of the audit or olnerwise appears to be
rmaterally rmisstated f we identfy such matenal
inconsistencias or apparent matenal missratements,
we are reguired 1o deater
to a matenal mssiatement in the financia:
staternents themsshies, If, based or trie work we
have performred, we corcluae that there 1< a
materal misstatemen: of the other informaticn, we

are reguired G report that fact,

We have notrung to report in this regard

3
|8}
c
=
£
=2
5
Q)
3
o
Q)
wm
D
{3
]
3
.
=
n
%
(o]
=
=
C
5
Q.
[y
5
1
AN)
=
I8}
=l
3

« the information given in the Strareg:c

the Directors’ eport for the Francial yes

which the financal staternents are preparaa s

cOns sient wirth the financal statemenis; and

.
o

e Srategic report and Directors’ report risve

o

ecn prepared It accordarce with applicaole
legal requirements

Matters on which we are reguir
repord by exception

and understanaimg of
tne Group ard the Parert Company arid its

in tne hght of i-e krowledge

ervironment cbtaned in the course ¢f e gudit,
we have 7ot idertified f‘raterzal rnisstaternierts in

the Strategic regors or Direciors repo

We have nothing o report in resgect of the

D

followmmg matters 1 relation to which

=t

~ ‘/* .

Comganies Act 2006 requires us 1o repoi to you f,

N our cpinkon

s 2dequate ascourung reCords Fave not been kept
or retwrTs adeguate for cur audt nave ot been

f
receved from brarches not visited by us, or

Comrpany fnancizl staternans ar

It
B
O

3

Imagreertent with e atcourtng reco-ds ahd

mire whether this gives rise

-

« certain disciosuras of Direciors remursration
sgecified oy law are not made; or

» we have ot rece’vec gil the irfermation and
explarations we reguire for our audit

Rsﬁpemébiﬁitim of direciors

plained mare fully in the Drectors’

T
i
\(

r“spcmsr‘béi;ties starement set out
esponsibie

on pages 29 and
for the preparation
of the financial staterments and for being satsfied
trat they gve a
irtarna: control as the Directors

true ard fair v ew, and for such

determing g

recassary to enabie the pregarzticn of finantia
s

10mts that are

3

e free from materal

misstaterrent, whetner due to fraud or ercor

In prepaneg tre firancial statements, tre Direciors

are responsiple for assessing the Group's and the

Parent Companry's ablity to continue as a going
corcerns, d‘“\dc\:r‘g, as apoucade matierz: related
to gong concern and usin
ha
rtena o iguidate tme Groug or the Parent

O Lease

the going concemn

s of accountng urless ;he Jireciers either

Company or
realisic aliernative

operations or have no
out to 6o sG

fuditor's responsiblilitiss for the audit
of the financial statements

Our opectives are to chtar reascnatle assurance
z2bodt whether the financia. statfemenrts as 2 wnole
are free from matenial miss

tatement, woether due

to fraus <r esrarn, ana o 1ssus an additor's repor
trat nciudes cur opirnon. Reasorakle assurance is
z hige level of assurance, butis ot g guaraniee that
an ﬁuJ Foarducted in aoeardance witk 1SAs (U
gerrerts can arse frerm fraud or error
recered materiai f indsduaily or intne
aggregaie, they could reasonably be expected to

irfluence the ecoroemic taren on

tre bass of these financial statamens
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as to what extent the » obtaining an understand.ng of polaies and
audil was considered capable of

detecting rregularities, including

procedures e place regarding compliance
with laws and regulations, mcudng how

fraud : compliance with such polices s maonitored
3 Emre = S =11sl nedarcts v
Irreguarites. ncluding fraud, are nstances of non- ang enforced; chtaining an understanding of

rianagerents process forentiymg a
srocedares in ine weh our feapcr‘gm tec, outlreg ! rESpanaing 10 fraJd risks, including programs

above, to deect inegalar bes, in ana controls established 1o adaress risks

compliance with laws and regulations. We das'gn

ng fraud. The

idenified, or otherwise prevens, deter and

i Gf ot d\,fz' SUng & r?"ater:lal setaternent due to
. - L H fel=x=" I's [aTell; 23 .r T crment
fraud s higher than the fisk of not detectsrag orie : ect fraud, and now senior manageme

‘ . . ‘ : nenitors £ programe and Conrols;
resuiting from error, as fraud may nvolve deliberate MONItars those progrars and conirols,

conczalment oy, for example, forgery or interticral » review of poard mesting minutes i1 the nericd
misregrezentations, or througn collusion. The i and up o oate o signing

extent (o wrich our procedures are capable

Poe Weassessed the suscephiility of the Group's

detecting irregolanties, inclucing fraud is de aued : ‘

‘ . . _ : financal statements to raterial misstatement,
below. “oweves, the primary responsiolty for the : ) )

. " ;. ‘ ) : neluaimg mow fraud n g Nt occur by holding =
oreveriion and detection of fraud rests witr botn :

o . ‘ : discussion wibrn trhe zudit team which ‘ncluded:
those charged with governance of the entity ard :
managemert ¢ icentificaton of reisted parues,
Cur appreach was as follows : « Understanding the Group’s busness, the
: slalidoR ewvoﬂrwcm anac assessing the inherent
« We obtained a~ understanding of the legal anc : ¥ -
nsk for rewevent assertions at the signficant

regdlatory frameworks that are applicable (o the
Group and determined tnat the most sigrificant

sccourt level including discussions with
managernent 1o gain an understanding cf

are those that relate 1o reporting framework [FRS ) ‘

: those areas of the firancial staterments wrich
102 and the Comipan.es Act 2008)
were suscesiible to fraud, as icentified by

+ We understood how ~ern Traging Limited =
ompiyirg with those frameworks Dy making

mar:agement; ard

« considered the contros the Grolp has
esablishec o address r|_kf icentified by
the entity or that otnerwise seek to prevent,

enguiries o menagement, these charged with
governance and those responsicie for legal

and compliance procedures as to any fraud rizk
deter cr detect fraud including gaining an

frarnewaork within the entity, including whether
J ol
understanding of the entity leve. controls anc

a formal fraud risk asseszmentis completed. We 2 L i
: noucies that the Group applies.

U
m

corrchorated our engu.res through review of the
followirg docurmentat'an or performance of the 1« Basec on this understand:ing we des'gned our

followirg proceduras: : aLdl procegures to ertify non-complance
‘ : witl such iaws and regulations, Our procedares
¢ obtamning an understanding of enuty-leve! :
, : mnyvoived testurg of journai entries througn
contros and consideng the influence of the :

‘ Journal analytics tools, with focus on manual
contro, ervirenment;

§
¥ LT
et it ity

Haii

‘” s REBLRA Lok aony

e S
el i

tials vmm i

S
S
R i

LR




B4

3 COVERNANCE

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals
meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business; tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
statements; and inspecting carrespondence,

if any, with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further descrigtion of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statlements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

O Y .
LSS TENS TS S I U S L I

This report is made solely to the Company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companices Act 2006. Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’'s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone ather than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Fundclito j\c_L.P

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP. Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 Decernber 2022

i
i
!
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4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022
Croup profit and loss saccount Tor the vesr ended 30 Juns 2022
{restated)

2022 2021
o _ & Mote £000 £:000
Tumover e B A€ R £ ST 8 AR L HE ‘ ite30 e 502‘)“
Cast : {410,883) (221,277
Grossproht S 3009477”7 ‘20402‘:
Admin stratve expoenses {258,251) (231 244)
bperétiﬁq proﬁil(lossl - - a2 o 42696 : (27, 819)'
Cther incorme 1 3,550 5454
Incorme from etner fixen asse investmants 5,249 449
Shiare of operatnig profit i joint venture - 1,755
Preft on dispasal of subsicianes arg oint venture & 29,533 28,568
Cther imerest recevable ang simitar ncoime £ 130 957
nrerest pavjo £ 3na s tdf (J arges £ (33,554) (?6 067
Proﬁtl([oss) before taxation 7 S 47,604 22 665)”'
Tas on proat/{ines) / (16,294} {8,345}
Profit/lloss) for the financlalyear 3130 @01
Attributable to Fern 37,932 (27.005]
Minority interest (6.622) 007

31 310

.012)

All results relste wo continuing activities Note 26 detalls tie prnior oenog adustments

Group statement of comprehensive income for the vear ended 36 June 2022

{restated)
2022 2021
SR e n whm s L £’000 EOOO
Profit/(loss) for the ﬁnancialyea:mw o o h 31;31;0‘ o (31,012)
Ot_hercomprehenswemcome- R
Moverrents in cash flow Pedges 77,985 44583
say/(loss) on retrarslation of subgidiares 18, 551 (333}
Othercomprehenswe income for the year S ”796 546 . 44 650
Totalcomprehensive income fortheyear 127886 13638

Attributable to
+ Owners of the parent 134,478
+ Non-¢ ing interests {6, 622}

127,856
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4 ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022 ;

(restated) !
2022 2021 ‘
lllll i e e e i EOO0 KOO
leed assets
rtancible assets 8 557,708 576,739 :
Tangib-e azzets G 1,893,430 1,581,682
Irvestrnerits i 35,452 1,000 5
e e+ e e o o e e e e Az 486 590 e 2 169421
Current assets o S ' ;
Stocks 12 184,479 94711 ‘
Deptors including £138 (2021 226 1m) 12 623,161 598,002 ,
rue after mor than ane year !
Cash at bank ad  bard 1 256,415 172478
- - o 1068055  seslol
Credltors amounts fallmg due \mthln one year S T (256 152) (202 U 9‘ ~~ 1
Net :urrentassets rrrrrr S . 807 903 T 66%13?
Totalas:éi; less current l:aballtles _ S o ”3“254 493 o Mz 832, 353- ,
Credltors amounts fallmg due after more than one year - (992 425) - 903 739)M
Prows:onsfor ilab:iltles I - (82,620) o ’41 ?75\‘ ;
Net assets - - T 2219488 1887242 "
Capital and reserves |
Callec wp share canta 18 161,662 14,676
rare pernisra acoount 364,882 173118 |
Mergor reserva 1,635,569 1440257 !
Cash low hedge resene 63,006 {14,379} !
Pro*‘* Ela 3 355 ACCOLINT (Z 770) 136.049 j
Total shareholders’ funds I 2 222 349 1884121 j
Mo ) (2,901} 3721 ‘
Capltalempioyéd o -2219,443 . 1,887,84é E
Note 26 getails the prior pericd adjusimenrts
Trese consoidated Anancial statements on pages 35 1o 92 were asproved vy tre Board of directors on, :
L6 Decemper 2022 and are sigrea o0 thair pehall by
|

PS Latham

Director

Registerec rumbe- 22621635
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Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2022

2021
SRS e s E OOO wae
Fmedassets B B b S i o R s 0 g
I estments 10 2,538,978 2,116,366
Current assets . - -
Czotors 13 39,888 501,283
Cestal Lanic and in ha~d i1 6,422 1.523
' . 86,310 51,906
Cred|tors amounfé faﬁmg due wuthm one year o 14 “ (449)‘"“ - ?2;‘354)
Net current assets T ‘45 861 . ?8,98é -
Totai éséets less current llabsht:es S “2 585 839 S W.WZM 1;:‘;;”49 h
Net assets ““2,585,839 o 2 143 348 -
Capital and reserves
alled up share capnal 13 161,662 149576
Share prerniuen account 364,882 173118
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1791145
:”'Q it and loss acconnt 72 838 31 4(}9
Total shareho{dérs funds S - -"2 585 B39 4E 34’3 N

The Comgany has elected 1o taka

the exemption under sect:on 408 of the

_omparies Act 2006 not o

preser trie Company proft and loss accourt The profit for the financ al period dealt with in the financiat

statements of the Company was £236.742.000 (2021 loss of £157.504,000;

and are signed on ther bhehalf by

PS Latham
Director

Registered nurnber 12601636

se financa. staternents ar pages 35 to 92 were aporoved by the

Board of direciers orn 15

Cecember 2022
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Ciroup statement of changes I egulty for the year ended 30 June 2022

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders” interest (restated)
{restated) (restated) funds
{restated)

£°000 £000 E'00D £'000 £'000 E0DO £°000 £000

128,435 ~ 1635569 B28L7) (41,185} 1.668,962 9570 678,552

- - - 3,875 13828 17703 - 17703

138435 - 1635568 (58,562} {27356} 1.686,685 8570 1,696,255

on ret el - - - - (2234 (333) - EXXY
s

Crer

- - - 44083 (27.328) 17,645 4.C07) 13638

LS 2 - - - - 1831 1,831 (1.842) 113

METs Corral Gr

- 195,212} - 145,312 - - -

11685 173118 - - - 184,803

143676 173118 1440257 114,579) 13£,.04% 1884221 3721 1LB87.842

S I ST CE R B s O P it % maan it o P b qBema e nd T banenenls b S TREA A nan PTG P Rt L ST AR R R b0 4 PUUMNRA SRk %A ¢ o TR R P AR

184,803

[444) - - - (6£.399) (6,843) - (6,843)

Balance as at
1 July 2021 (

Profit for the
financial year

149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (14,979) 136,049 1884,121 3,721 1,887,842

- - - - 37,932 37,932
Changesin mark& 7 ) h

value of cash flow B - - 77,985 - 77,585 - 77,985
hedges

Foreign exchange
toss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 13,561
of subsidiaries

(6,622} 31,310
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Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds
E'000 E£'000 E'000 £000 E'000 E'000 £000 £'000
Other S
comprehensive - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/{expense} for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/f{expense) tor - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 (6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger _ 195,312 _ (195,312) - _ -
reserve
Shares issued during 191,764 - - - 203,750 - 203,750
the year
Balance as at
20 June 2022 364,882 1,635,569 63,00€ (2,770} 2,222,349 (2,901) 2,219,448
Note 26 details the prior period ag;ustments
Company statement of changes in sguity for the vear ended 30 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Tetal
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
E’OOD E'000 E'Q00
- - - ﬁSf 504} (157,504)
- - (195 3;4) 195,312
T“Tal CcomprEglite INComa - - (195 312 37808
Shares ssucd dunng the vear 150,120 173112 1,986457 -
floi
Sr E e: \.er el d .,.IF"“FJ he : (444, — _ 6 399] ;r.z‘?
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149 576 173,118 1,791,145 31 409
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741
Utitisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312)
Total comprehensive income - - 195,312 £1,429
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - -
Shares cancelied durmg the year - - - -
Sala nce as at 30 June 2022 161 562 364 882 1,986,457 72,838
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o

Group statement of cash flows for the yvear ended 30 June 2022

Note

»»»»»» S i e T e T P S T Ty

Cash flows from operatmg actw:tles

Proffiloss) for the Snancial year attrbatable 1o the swners of the parent 37,932 (27,005)
Adjustments for:
Tax on profit/iloss) / 16,294 8,349
Intercet recalvable and sirmlar Income € (130) (997
Irterest payable ard Gther sirnilar onarges & 33,554 36,0608
Profir on aisposal of subsidianes and ,oint venture & {(28,532) (28,568)
income frony joint ventlre - (1.755)
licorre from Faed assat investrents (5,249] (449)
Armgrisation and imparrent of Intangibie xed assets 3 45,762 37,704
Cepreciation of tangtle fxed assets 2 101,802 84697
Mon-cash staff costs 3,040 34875
Moverrents or denvatives and fore g exchange {18,044) {19,788)
Ircrease 1 stock (19,829} (5,701)
{ricreasel/decieass 1IN debiors 31,022 249,374
InCrease/(decrazsel in crnditons {173,956} 6,871
Man-contreling irteress 15 (5,622) 4,007}
25 853 {1.751)
Y ng actwmes S 41 897 o 341917
Cash flows from mvestmg activities e
Purcriase of subsidiary undertak- gs (Met o cash acaured] {52,377) {221,987}
Sale of subsidiary undertakings and Jo-t ventare 101,778 34,503
FlLroraze of targible assets (322,446) (110,457)
Purchase of ~tangble aszets {7.222) (875}
Purcnase o (124,203) (29.617)
Sale o ic 105,000 20,133
Irteras 6 130 G597
Jrr:orn, frorm Jo Nt wentore - 1077
Net cash used in mvestlng actwmes B m(ZbS,%i&) - (3”5321
Cash flo;é from financing activities -
Proceeds fror financng 201,719 -
<t caid (32,319) (35,552
ayments of A~arang {32,013) (212 676)
Proceeds from srare 1ssue o4 203,750 184,359
Carcelanon of shares : - 16,399}
Net cash generated from ﬁnanclngwartrzrf'trwtles 77777777 341.137 ) (7-0-,2-687)
Net a:ecrease)riru;craase in cash and cash equwalents - 83,694 (54 577)
Cash anc casn eguivalents at the ceginnirg of tre year 1 172 478 206 688
Excrangs gars on cash and cash eguvaiens - ‘7A2{§j o 367 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1t B 256 415 o 17.5 478

W bl

{restated)
2022 2021
E'ODO E OOO

Note 26

derals the pror per.od adjusiments,
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information
Fern Tracing Limited (tre Company ) s a private compary lmited by enares and incorparated on 14 May

2020 Tre cormzany is cormniciled in .Fr:r‘\.am“ the Uried K:ngoom ard regstered under company numper
12601636 The address of the regisiered office < at 6th Floor 33 Holbarn, Londor, England, ECIN ZHT.
Statemaent of complisnce

The Grouo ana ind vidJaal firancial staterments of Fern Trading Limiied have been orepared in comrpaance
with Urred <ingdom Accountng Standards, mcuding Financal Reportnng Standard 102, The Financ:al
Reportrg Standard applaahle in the United Kingoom and the Republic of relang (FRS 1027 and the

Companies Act 2006

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financ’al staierments have been prepared on a going corcern basis, under the hestoncal cost convention,

as maodified by the recogriton of cenain financial asses ard labilities rreasured at falr vaiue, ard In
accordance with the Companies Act 200¢€ ard acplicakle account ng standards in the Unite dorm, Tre
prNcIpat account Ng col ces, whicr ~ave necn apzleg consistenty treLghnourt the year are set out below.

The consclidated financial slaterrerts include tre results of ai subsidiaries owned oy Fern Trad'ng Limiteo
as listed ir noe 29 of the annua! financal statements. Certain companies of these subuidiaries, which are
have taken the exempt on from an audit for the year ended 30 June 2022 permitted oy
section 479A of Companes Act 2006, ir order 0 alicw these subsidianes to take e audit exerpren, the
parent company has gr e & statutcry guarantee, nlinre with section 4793C of Compan es Act 2008, of all
the cutstanding net Lakilies as at 30 June 2022,

hsted nornote 29

Gioing concern
The Group's ana the Compary's business activties, together vath tne factars Gkely to affect s future
developmert, performance and posinion are set ot tne Strategic Report on pagea 4t 14 Tre financial

position of tne Group, its cash flows, liguidity pesitor and borrowing facilities are descrised in the inancia.

review on gages 23 to 27 Tne principal risks of the Group are set cut on pages 16 1o 15,

The Directors perform an annuai gong concern review that consiaers the Grouo's ability to meet s
finarncial ol'gations as they fail due, for a periog of at least twelve rmnonins after the date that the financial
statements have been signed

Due to the challenging market condimaons management have perfarmed an assessment to dererrmne
whetner there are any material unce-tantes ansing that cousld cast dignificant dcubt on the ablity of the
Group to coninue as a go'ng concaern No sigrificant issues have been noted and as a conseguence, the
directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the curren:

uncerta n economic outlook
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in reaching this conclusior: e Directors

Group’s bawance sneet, profit and ©ss and cash £

A raverse stress test was performred o
risks to the Gr

of reveriue of

oe kowd ty postion The tess

due for au least a year from the date ©
\n
\

ye
faciities w hin the Group

nave reviewed tre fnancial :mpact
s weith

recast to ascert
s SHOWECS even I an Ll
E%, the Group is acle to sustain its current operatcnal <os

of the uncertairily ontne

specific oo eration given to the follow ng

owhial scenanos would resultin

=iy scerario ¢ a sigruficant reduction

ard meet all Latities as they fall

5Esigring thase fingnc:al statements when utlising the avalable

Tne Gredp has a number of Anancing facilitie: thal contamn covenants requiring tne Grous o mainan
specited firanca, ratics and comrpiy with certam other finarcial covenants These firancial covenants are
tested at least quarterly, and. at the date of th s renort, the Groug is i compliarce vwitr gl its drancal

casorably pausibie

ola cas~ of £256m
of E220m Debt of £85m is due o
The

AL 30 Gune 2022 the Group nad avana
revoly ng redit facisty

of £956m payable in rmore tran one year 7

set outin Note 16 _oans and 3orrowirgs.

Rey accounting judgement and estirrates have been made

econom ¢ oulook Key estimates include loar ren

denormImssicning prov s ong, -

accountnig. Detalls are set out on gages 55 10 51

o5 von, hauidity ard fnarcial covenants, the
adequate rescuices

adopt the ge ng concermn bas s of

Exemptions for guslifving entities und
FRS L02 allows a qualifying entoy cerlan dsc.osure exem
peer compred w.in, nciucing notficavcn o and no
sharehclders

sCenanos suUch 4s a

wcast to De Met even under tre stress 1637 scenario, in the goIng concearn pe

e Grouss fac

mpsirmert of goodwill and Irvestrents, business <o

f current economic conditions ana the mopsct on the Group's

accoonting It preparing the annuat ananaal

sigrifcant reduction i EBITODA of 84%

azsess the covenant reguirements for the at zast the next twelve moniths ard

ano nesdroorn ava lable of £441m incuding &

mature 1t less tan one year, with the remainder

diri

5, répayment dates and uandrawn arncunts are

with consideratior Siven 1o the current

veraslty, valuat on of work n orogress

rmoinat ors and haedge

fimancial

cirectors nave concuded mat the Grouwn and Comrpany has

o conunue i- operaicnal existerce for Lthe next 12 mortng, Thus, they cortimue o

sratements

sy FHS 1GE

The Comoary has tazen advantage of the following exemptions:

from prepar ng 2 statemrent o
sraterment of “zsh flows,

VWS

inzl.ded

nefromr ancosrg the Corrpary key ma

caragrach 337

cash flows, or tne bhasis

f i3l
caragrachs 12.25 w0 72 29, as ine infermaton < grovded n e cor

prions, supject to certain cordjons, wh\c have
vbjpfhe’\m £, the use of exemptions oy the Comgoany's
that it s a qualiy' ns enuty and tre consaidated

= hese hnarcel statemares, incivded (ne Comeeary's cash fiows,

metrur et disclosures, required under TRS 182 caqagraphs 11.2% to 11 484 an

scldaed frang a statemrert

nAgaMment Dars yrrel comcensanar, as required [93% FRL 102
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Baszis of consolidation

The consclidated fnancial staternents include the results of Fern Trad mg _imited and all itz sups.diary
undertax'ngs made up o the same accounung date, All intra-group balar transachions, income and

expensas are eliminated in full or consolidaton, The results of subsid ary undertakings acquired or disposad

of cunng tre period are included or excluded from the noome statemert from the effective dare of

acauisition or disposal,

All undertak ngs cver which the Group exercises conre', be'ng the power 0 goverr the francial and
coeratng polic es s as to oblamn peneits fiom ther activities, are corscadated as subs diany undeartakings

Where a subsidiary ~as different accounting policies 1o the Group, adjustmearns are made to those

sLbsigiary financial staterents to apoly tre Group's accounung policies when srepanng the consolidatad
finarcal staterrents

)
;}
o]
-
0]
%3]
[ %}

Ary subsigiary urdertakings or as g or acqured dunng tre year are ncludec up to. or from, the

dates o change of control or change of sigrificant nfiLence respeciively

Where the Group has written a put option over zhares ne'd bv a nor-cortraling nterest, the Group
derecognises the nom—corwtroui:zg interest ard instead recognised contmgent deferred consiceration habilizy
wtrnin other payacles for tre estimated armount tkely o be ga'd (¢ the ron-controlirg mierest on exercise

of these options The residual amount, represernung the daﬁeremce hetween any consideraten paid/payabie

and the non-cortreung IMIerast'’s snare OF nes a1sets, 1s recognised as goodwill Movements in the

eshmated liaciity afier inital recogmiuon arg -ecognsed as goodwil,

Forgign currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group frarcia. statemenis are presented in pound ster.ing and rounded o thousands.

Tne Compary's functonal and oresentaticn currency 15 polnd sterling and rounded o thousands,

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are trarslated 'nio the functional currency Lsing the spot exchange rates at,
the dates of the ransactons. At eacr period end foreign currency monetary iterms are translated using the
closirg rate Non-mongtary items measured at historical cost are trarslated using the exchange rate at the
date of the trarsaction and non-monetary iterms measured at far vaiue ae measured using the exchange
raie when far value was determined. Foraign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settement of
transactions and from the transiaton at penicd-end exchange rates of monetary zssets and Labitites
genaminated in foreign currencies are recogrised in the profit and loss account

Al foreign exchiange gamns and .osses are presented in the profic and loss account within adminisirative
CAPENSes.

iii. Translation

The trading results of Group undertakings are ransiated into pounas sterling at the average exchange rate

or ithe year The assets ana liabilities of overseas undertakings, ncluding gooawilt and fair value adjustiments
'sing on acguisition, are transiated at the excange rates ruling at the yea--end Exchange adjustrents

rsi ng from the retranslation of openirg net nvestments ard from the ranslauon of the profiits or losses
verage rates are recognised n Otner compranensive income’ and allocated w non-centroling interest

SRR

Ertls
:

b g
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Turnovear

-
3

n

o~

STCup operaies a number of classes of busiress

he saic of elactricity generated oy colar farr

i

« Healrhcare

Turnover s recogn sed winen the sign

e5 1% recognised on ar accruais Lasis in

Reveriue is derved by the folowing

e power

tha per ot in whick itis

T fisKs and rewards of ownersnip of reuremer: propertes have

passed ta the buyer (o0 lega. comp.eton). the amaount of revenus can be recognised reliaoly, and it's

probakte that t

=)
D

sconomic oerefite associated witn the transacton wil flow to the entity,

Turnove:

13 recognized at the ‘arr value of the consideration rece ved o7 neashcars services orovides n the normal

gl

course of businegss, and 15 shown nat of VAT Turnoven &

provided

¢ Lecarng
Turnover represants arrangement

added tax. L.oan nerest s recos

~d terest 04 leans

date the servca 1s

proviced o customers, nat of ary value
ane vwith conraciual lerms of the leoan

s car to whch they relate

Turncver is recognised at tne ‘ar velue of the consideration recoived for imiernet connechwity and relaed

T services providea nthe roqmal course of buziness, and

hased on the date th Vice is proviged

« Mouse burding

Turnover s recogrised on legal completior of trie sale o pr

from housing assocation contrac

progcrtion of the total costract vaiue

Employes benefits

-

~e Grodp orovides

a
ahr

a1}

rrangerrents and d ed conrouticn persion plans.

i. Short-term benefits

= recogrized by reference

5 snown ~el of VAT Tornover 1s recognised

range of berests 1o empioyeas, inc.uding an—ual oonus arrgrgerments, paid ho. day
ad

Shor- terr peneflts including hoiiday pay and other smitar ron-maoretasy berefis are reccanised as an

SXDErsE IN N2 paNon M wi Cr ihe Service s "ece ves

il. Defined contribution pension plan

I =

A de

red contnbuton piar s g perwor plar under whice the Group pays frec centnbuors:nic a

separate entty. Once the comr butions Fave beer paid the Groug has 7o furiner payment obigatinrs

Tre contnoutions are recogrised as an exgense whern they are aus Anounts not pad are shown in

accruals In the palance sheet Tre assats of tre pan are held

admriristerad fu-ds

paratety rorm the Crouo i mndependerty
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iii. Share-based payments

Cask-setled share-pased payments are measured at far value at the talarce sheet gate. Trhe Group

recogrises a liability 2t tne talance sheet date based on these farr values, taking into accourt the esurated
Ufnte Jrits that will actually vest and the current gronortion of the vesung penc

Changes ir the value of this liabi ty are recogrised in “he income stalement

The Groun nas no equity-settlad arrangernents.

Finance costy

Finarce costs are charges to the proft and (oss account over the erm of the debt using the efective
nterest rrethod so H“ the armount charged is at a constani rate on the carrying amount [szue Costs are
ntizlly recogn sed as a reduction 1in the proceeds of the assoniated capial irstrumert and reiessed to ©

orafit and oss accounrt over the term of the gebt

Current and deoferred tax
Tax is recognised i the sfaiement ¢! rcome and retained sarmings, excest that a change attr butable to an
item of INCcome ana expense recognised as otner comorerersive noome or (o ar fem recegnised directly

neguty s also ygmsed I otner comprehensyve ncarme or drectly m oeauty respeciively

m
|"D
]
~

The curre~t ncome tax charge 1s cziculated on the bas's of tax rates ard laws that have Deen enacted or
es where the Company ogperaes and

=

substantively enacted by the Daiance sheet date I= the cournt
generates «ncome.

,
L=
@
1‘
9]
=1
)
&
o

alances are recognised i resoect of all tirring differences that nave origr biut not reversed
by the Bawance sheet date, except that,

« The recogrition of gdeferred tax assets it trnited w0 the extent that it 1s probanle that they will be recovered
against the reversa fd erred tax liaoiities or other future taxable profits, and

« Any deferred tex baiarces are reversen If and when all conditions for remining associated 1ax allowances
1ave beer met

Deferred tax balances are rot recogrisea i respect of permanent differences except in respect of business
combinations, when deferred tax 18 recognised o the differences between the far va:uss of assets acguired
and the future tax deductons available for them and tre differences petween the fair values of liabilites
aeaured and the ammourt that wil be assessed for tax Deferreq tax s determinad usirg tax rates and @aws
that Iave been enacied or substantively eracted by the balance sheet date.

Busiress combinations and goodwil
BLsimess cormbinalions are accounied for by apoly'ng the purchase method.
The cost of 3 business comaraton s the fair value of the consideration given, liabiuties nourred or

assumred and the equity instruments issued plus the costs directiy aftributazle to the business comibination
(";

Where contrel s achieved in stages tne cost s the consicerat.on at the date of eacn transacton,

On acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed to the icentinabie assets, kanilites a~d cortngent
liabilnies uniess the fair valae cannot be measured reliably, in which case the value is incarpcrated as

goodwill Wrere the far vaiue of contingert bablities can~ot be reliably measured thoy ace disclesed

on the same basis as other conongent lab:lities.

[~
st N
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Goodwil recognised represents thie excess of tne fair value and directiy attnbutacls costs of tne purchase
Y
consideration over the fair vawes o the Sroup's interest ir the idenufiable ret assets, vsbitties and
contingent labutes acguired.

On acquisition. gaadwii s ailocated to cash-genesrating units (TG U] that are expected to benefit from

tre comazration,

Goodwilis armorised over its expectad use’ul e which s determneg based on the est'mated lifespan of
e gssets acquired Where the Group s unable to make a reliatile estimate of usetul ufe, goodwill is
amcriised over a pericd not exceed ng ten years Goodwl! s reveweo ang assessed for impasrment
indicators on an anrual basis and any impairment is crarged 1 the profit and (oss.

Tangible fixved assols

¢ caicllated to write

Targible fixed assets are stated at Cost less deprecatior Deoreciation s provided at rat
esnected usetul lives Depre

off the cost of fixed assers. less: their estrnated residuzl value, cver tnerr el

set s broucht into scrvice Land and &35e1s in tne course of construction

useful tves are as follows:

o are stated at cost These assets are ~of degraciated until they are

Where f;
crouseful U

cat advancement or cranges N marke! proe, indicate that résicua. value
residual value, Lseful ufe or depreciation raig are amendes prospectively 1o
refiect the new circurnstarces The atsets are reviewed for imparmert if the above faciors mdicate that the

arry:ng amount may e mp-&-wed

Gans and losces on dizpesals are determined by comps’ ng the procesds with 148 Carrying amount anc ars
recognssed within grofit or (oss

intangible assets

Iftghg\bt assets are stated &t cost iess accumulated amor a imMpairment losses
t -ine methed, to allocate tre depreciable amourt of tne ascers

gefll ivas, azs oiows

Amortsation expensas are nciyced noadminisirative expenses

Seveloprment nokts relate o plannng consent to ou'd a 7 atiusen

]
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Hife have changed, the

Where “actors, such as changas in market price, indicate that res'duat value or usef

residual vaiue, useful life or armorusation rate are amended prospact vely to reflect the new circumstances

The assets are reviewed forampa rment i the above factors indicate that the carrying amaount rmay
ne impaired

Leages
At inceptor the Growp aszesses agreements that transfer the nght to use . g
waeler tne E]'rarlgér'Y‘uP‘r"r o Or caritains, & l2ase based or the supsiance of o arrangementand whothcr

3

the leaze smould be ciazsfied 33 eitrer a firance ease or an operating lease.

Leases of assets that trarsier substant ally ali the rsks and rewards incicental 1o ownearsh o are classified as

n ieazes Firance leases are capitalised at e commencement of the lease al ine fair value of tne
leased asset ara cepreciated over the shorter of the lease rerm and the estimated dseful ife of tho a
Assets are assassed for impanrrment at eacn reporting date

Leases that do not transfer all the qsks and rewarcs of ownership are cassfied as operating leases.
Payrrents under operaing leasas are charged to tne profit and loss accournt on a straigh-iine pasis aver Me
pencd of the lease.

investments

The Compary holds invesiments in a subsidiary at cost less accumulated impairment losses If an
irnpairment 1oss 15 subsegquently reversed, the carying amourt of the rvestment is increased ¢ the revised
estimaie of its recoveralle amount, hut only 1@ the exient that the revised carrying arrount does not exceed
the carying amount that would Fave been determined had no imparrmert oss been recogrsed i pror
perncds. A reversal of an impairment 'oss 1s recogrused in the profit ard loss account

t.ash

Cas~ inzludes cash in hard and deposits regayabie on demand Restricted cash represenis cash for which
the Group does not have immediate and direct access or for which requlatory or Legd equireents restrict
the uze of tre cash.

Stocks

Raw mraterials, spare parts and consumanies are vauea at the lower of cost and net realisable va.ue Where
recessary, a provision is made for obsoiete, slow-moving and defecuve stock. Cost is determined on the
fwr”tf r, frst-aut {FIFO] methos

Fuel stocks (MBM and litter) are valued on an average cost basis over ore [(© two mortng and orovision ‘or
unusable itter 1s reviewea montnly ard apphied to off-site stock.

Fuel stock o straw has been valued at the nistoncal cost per tlonne of straw. A provision for unusagle straw
=d on an individual stack basis and s reviewed manthly Stocks are used on a first in, first ot

fi
("FI=0") bas s by age of straw
Stocks of ash at Florophos are valugea at the lewer of cost and net realisakle value ¢ the Group.

Stocks of property devaopmert work in progress ("WIP') are stated at the {ower of cost and net realisanle
value Cost comprises direct matenals and, where applicable, direct lebour costs and those ovarheads that
fave heen ncurred in bringing the stocks o ther prezent locauons and condition.
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At each reporting date, an azsessment is mads for irnpairment. Any excess of the carryng amounrt of
stocks over ts estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell s recogmised as an imparment (053
through the profic and less account. Reversals of impa.rment 0osses are also recogs sod in the profit and
less account

LSocraed Income

Ao‘med ILOme L:r:ms 15 ca\cu\atec} gt the rate of irteres: set oulir the can contracis. Energy Income is

Teferred income 1§ recogn sed n accordance with the terms set out in the contact. Deferred income is
released to the proft and los: account in the penca o wrrch it relates

ne Group nas chosen o edopt Secteons 11 and 12 of RS 107 n respect of financia nstruments.

cincludirg trade and otrer receivabios and cash ard cark balarces are inuaily

rccognised at iransaction price, unless e arrangement consttutes a finarcing transachion, where the
transactior 1s rmeasured 3t the present vaiwe of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of inferazt

s are subsequently carded at anmrortised oost Liing tre effective mierest method.

Sach as

At tne end of each reporting pericd financial 2sses re

asured at amortised cost are assessed for ob,ectue

evidence of impa rment, If an asset s impaired the mparmrert 1655 15 the difference betwee- the carrying

armoort ard tre ;;resemf valle of tha estimates cash flows ciscounied at the assets oniginal

N

—+, . | < ~, . | ey ey
rate Tne imoairment loss 18 recogrised in profit or loss

Otner Francal assets, ncluding investrmeants n agqu’ty mstruments which are rot subsidiaries, asscoiates or
Jjontventures, are initally measured st fair value, which s normaily tre ransaction prce. Sacn assets are

subseguently carried ar fair value and the cnanges in fair value are recogr sed in prefit or (oss, excepr that

Irvestrients 1IN equity insirumearnss that are not puslicly rraded arc whose fair values canncr oe measdrez
re.atiy are measured st cost less mpairmens

Francal assets are cerecognises when (& ire contractual nghts 1o tre cash flows from the asset cxpire or

are settlea, or (b) substartially all the nsks and rewards of the owrersrip of the asset ave transerred (o
another party ¢ {c) contro. of the asset nas bean transferred 1o anctrier party who bas the gractical ability
e asset (o an urremad third party wibout imocs rg addtiora. restricuons

esert valy o‘f e

ffective interas:
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Debt instrurments arc subsegaertly carred at amortised cost, using the effectve interes: rate method. Fees

paid on the establishment of (oan facilities are recognised as transachion costs of the lcan to the extent that
LS prebane that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee s defered urtil the
drawy-down occurs. T the exten: thers 15 no evidence that it s probatle that some or all of the faclity wil

ge drawn down, the fec s capitalized as a pre-payment for bguidity services ana amo

rtised over tre perica

of the faciity o which it relates

Trade payables are obligabons to pay ‘or goods or services trat have been acquired n the ordinary course

of busmess from supples. Accounts payabio are classthed a3 current liabilitizs if payment s Gue wilhin one
yvear origss. Hnot, they are preserted as non-carrent Labiitas, Trace payaptes are recognisad imtiatly a

tranzact:en price ang subsequently rreasured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Financial habitites are derecocgnised when the liability 15 extinguised, that 12 when the contractual cbligation

15 dizcharged, carcelled or expires

Provizions

al or

constructive obigation

lidie estm

Provis.ons are made where an event has takan place that gives the Group & le

=

that probably requres setlenrent by g transfer of econemic beneft, and s re ate can be made of

the arnaunt of the obligatior
Provisions ars cnarged as an expense [ the proft and loss account in the year that the Group become:
aware Of the okligation, and are measured at the best est mate at the calance sheet date of the expenditure

required 1o sattle the ctugation, ta<irg iNto account relevant nsks and unceriamties,

Hedging

The Group anplies nedge accounin g for rransactions entered IMto o Manage the cash flow exposures of
porrowings Interest rate swaps are neld 1o manage the irterest rate exposures and are des.gnated as cash
flow heages of floatirwg rate borcowings Changes .n the fair values of dervatves designated as cash flow

e,

redges, ard wnick are e
rela
nce
”

ctive, are recognised directly in s the hedgng
ess of the cumutative change in fair value of the hedging nstrumient since

eguity Ary inefectiven
:iO’TSh\p (being the exc

on of the heage over the cLmala
recogrised in the profit and lo

tive Chaﬂge ir the fair value of tne hedged term since nception of
J

geris

ge

o the profit and oss n
ged item Hedge accountng s d.sconti-

cast trans&ct:grw s no

The gain or (oss
5L,CQT’drﬂC€ with the cash flows ©

recognised in oiher comprerensive income is réc.assified
“he hedg

ot
2O

wed wren the
rEghiy
ng instrument 13 tarminatea.

=

hadging

~e
e

nstrument expires, no lorger meets the hedging cnteria, the fog o lon

proganle, the hedged aebt instrument is cerecogrisea or the hedg.

Share capital

ceads receved n the

W

L

Crd'nary snares issued by tne Group are recogn ted in equity at the value of the pro

excess over nominal value being credited o snare premium.

Mon-controlling interests

Non-control: .ng interesis are measured at ther proportionate shar

at ke date

of tne acquree’s :dentinaple

2 of gcausition

i ol
xew\mnit{&ﬁw

sganEly
Ptk s
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Key sccounting ju ﬁgﬁmmﬁf aned estimates
Tre preparation of inancial staterments in cornoliance witr FRS 102 requ-es the use of certam cr tical

accounting estirrates |1 alzso regures management (o exercise Judaement in applying the Company's
Cie

sccountng pos cies. Sstmates and 'udgamrr““ are conanualy evaluated ana are Dased on rssterical
experenze and other factors, ro'uding excectations of future events that are beleved (o ce reasonanle
T

e key estimizies and ;udgemef'ts I grepanng thess financial statements are

i Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate)

Loans and advances 1o custiomers, nciuging associated accrued income balances, are reviewed for

Imipa rment or g quarterly basis In considenrg the feed for a provisicon, managerent determire thair best
estimate of tre expecied future cask flows on a case by case besis As ths estirate relies or 2 certain
numper of assumpt eas about futare events which may ailfer from aciugl cutcomes, mcuding the
borrower's ablity to repay rierest and capits! due - future per.ocs, this gives rice to judgement as t

wherner there is g shortfall be

rthe carrying vaiue and the far va'ue of the debio arce

Managerment note that prov Sions agans: woant and advances is a critical esiimate and have therefore

performed sensitity analysis on the prowsicr Thar s of the sensit ity anatysis conclude that a change
of +/- one per cant ir the amount provided agarst the aesumated Zalance at nisk wou}d have resiulted ir

2 omess/imaore expenditure being chargec 1o tha income statement durng the pencd Sce rote 13 tor the

o
he]
]
S}
i8]

catrying amaonnt of the debtors and prowisicrs at 30 June

ii. Value of property development work in progress ('WIP') {(estimate)

Propearty developmert WIP s reviewad for mgairment on a periodic basis In cons denng the need for a
crovision, maragemeant determire tnelr test esumate of tne recoverable value Managorert engage an
expert external valoer to provide key assurmioions abous future events which raay d for from actual
outcomres, inciluding property valuaucons, rawe of sales and gevelocoment costs

Thess estimates give mse 1o ju cge'ﬂeﬂr as to whetner there s g shertfal. oetween the carrying value and tha
farr value uf the balance as at the 30 June 2022 Post year end, maragement have reviewed the
assumptions used o determine the value of properiy ceveloprment WI= and nave observad ne charges in

erformance that woud impact the vauat on a3 an the 30 June 2022 See ngte 12 for the carry ng amount

'O

]

of the property develnprment WiP

i. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgementj
Ne Groap owns two erergy generatng subiid gries in Austrelia wnich have eniered into purchase orice
agreements (PPAS) n 2019 and 2021 The FPAS incude a contract for ¢ flerences 'CID” NP‘ereo the

Ds:0ianes pay,’rerﬁ-ve amourts from the custamer based on the diferentes be

(P
&

=
(@
o
3
w
h
=
1]
O
73]
(1]
)
[te!
o
=
Ins
[

u
and e actoal price for ele 'th\; SOG to the Australian emerg;f markes Tre cire

ct
Guts de tre scope of FRS a non-“inancial terr and the 0 s typica. “or
2 3

such arrangements. Tnerefore 1 is being accountad for Lnder FRS 202 secton 23

¥ANasve consideralon, ratrer than reva urg the entre contract o far vaiue

iv. Business combinations {estimate)
The cost of a pusiness comb rauon 1s the far value of e con

Costs directy atirnbutasie to the business combination. Far va

-

and more data s are proviced on pages 45 10 46,
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Statement of accounting policies

v. Decommissioning provision {estimate)

The provison for decomrussioning €osis is measured at management's best esumate of e present value
of the expenditure reguired to setile the future cbligation to reture land an which there are cperatonal wind
ard solar farrs, to ke ong nat conditon Tre levael of the provisions i deterriined to a significant degree by
the ezt mation of future disrranthng and restorat.on costs, as well as the trmimg of d srmantlement

Wind Farms (estimate):

Maragerrent note thal decomrmIssioning orows cng iz a critical estimate ard have therafore performed

sensfiv by aralysis The reselis of the sengtanty ic conclude that & change of </~ one per cert i the
discount rate would have resaltad n £2 1m mcrease/eecrease in the proveon, See note 57 (or the provis o

recognised at 30 June 2022 Managerent uilise exiarmal expertise o provice ar esumated Cost ©
dismantle and have used a discount -ate of 2% to reflect the trme in value of money and the nsks specific
o the ocligation.

Australian solar farms (judgement):
The Grous s required [0 restore the leased prermises of the solar farm to their ongina conditon at the end

of the lease term. A prov sior was previously recognized, nowever in the currert year this judgemren: has
i2ssar may wisk to eitqer take tite of the asses for either

been reassessed and management beieve the ie
and as such do not celieve that ar outfiow is

anuniued use or to reause value through selling the ass
probable to setle tns restoration obigation.

UK Solar (estimate):

During tne year, a th'rg party performies an assessrnent of the base cost of the decommuss:coning of the
Groups UK sciar farms, The findings have resuited 1in material crange n the cost estimate and therefore a
provisor has beern recognised for the first time on some sites. The impact has resulied in a provision bemng
raised for £18m 10 the balance sheet decommissioning labiity and fixed assets, ,"\5 at 30 June 2022 there 15
no impact on the profit and loss, Sites not affected are addresced below,

UK and French Solar {judgment):

Ma~agerrent believe that given the nature of these par ular assets, the lessor rnay wish to erher take title
of the assets for either continued use or to realise value through selling the assets and as such do not
believe that an cutficw is pro le to settle this restorat o obligation Management wiil continue to monitor

Dao
the situation at each balance sheet date

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments {estimate}

The vaiue of goodwil. neld by the Group and investments in subsidiary undertakings held by the Cormpany
is reviewad annuatly for impairment The recoverability of these ba.ances is considered witn reference o the
present value of the estimated future cash flows These calculatiors use cash flow projections which extend
forward forecast business cerformarce together with assumptions surrcunding the -ﬂxpm: ted lfe of the

assef, externally prepared forecasts ard valuations, ard any acjusiments required o the Siscount rate 1o take
account of busiress risk The est'mated present value o these future cash fows is zeﬂsitwe w ne discourt
‘ate ard growih rate used in the calculation, alt of which reguire management's judgement Testing of the
carryirg vaue '”ai peen performed durng the vear, wn-ch bas invalved several scenanos being modetled,
Based on this testing ang the resulung imipairment recognised on investrients, maragerment believes there
s sufficient headroom 1o supmrt the value of goodwill and investiments in subsidiary entites.

Management note thatimpairment of goodw Land investmenits 1§ & cntical estrrate and have therefore
performed sersityvity analysiz o0 the provision The resuts of the sensitivity ansalys:s conclude that 2 change
of +/- ore per cent in the amount provided agains: the estimated balarce at risk would have resulted n

£S 49m less/miore exoenditure teing cnarged to the .ncome statement during the penod. Ses note 8 for
the carrying amaunt of the goodwill and investments at 30 June 2022
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g
Analysis of turnover by category

2022
£'000

activitios 42,404

Energy operaians — solarn, reserse power and wine 365,958

Energy onaratons - biormass and fardfil 223,526
Heatncare ooeriucens 45,978
Horme bl kg 25,034
Fiture 8,930

- 711,830

AR nnan B B L LT TIUPISUR SRS rvananed CVITIU MY LREagrucan 7% CCCMATRR ARG T UmESTeIRER Chsan s s OREATIINEAR LR s 27T

2071
£000
56550
179,820
141.826
42,266
4835
425,302

Incivased in ncorne Tom Healthcare oporati LA A (2021 £11 2rm) reiating 10 L1he sate of retmemert
3 d
S reriefer ey

ara L28 G (20710 £51 I} in relaton o services

Analysis of turnover by geography

2022
E‘OOO

 renaagaEia. anaas M hLefERInana ea o C30RATanmia. L TTORIORRESY b ooaiian T7 R @cmyans.. SORoiiams [T,

Ur1|f£:dm1“(]?1w:}dor*. R 603 911
Furope 84,433
Pﬂﬁt of word 25 486

711,830

VIS GE LrE,

2021
EOuu
384 799“.
31,893

8610
w/”ME» 202

Other income

2022
£'000

s and nsurance proc

3,550
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

R

This s stated afer chargmg/icredit ngs

frestated) ;
2022 2021 ;
£000 £000

% AR T T AT B AR TAE AN AR K 2wk ey £ R AU TE K AR AB AL CBEELRE ki« shmbuan somavmns  waw 7% TO300 TABEHEESwEGeTEdvae febRERinE) whd S % ABIRITI A IRRRLERIAL eRMED N B

Amcrtisanion of intangibe assets (acte 5 37.849 37704

Impairment of imanagibie assets (nofte 8) 7,913 -

Lepreciation of tangivle asses (note 8 104,802 84,697

Audrtors remunerahicn - Compasy and the Group's corsolidated 45 146
firancial staremenis

Aaditors’ remuneration - aucit of Company s subsidianes BiS 1,134
Aaditars’ remunerghion - non auct serices 246 513
Audirers remaneration — lax comppiarce senvces 482 672

Ciffererce on foreign cxchange 7,772 4,402
Operaing lease renials 13,783 7,502

Note 26 detais the pror perod ad,ustments
ooy L owy

2022 2021
E£'000 E'G00

¢ e S A e e K AR SES— aperanes U S IS, DS L e reRes .

B L L TN

Wares and salares o 85,432 41,383 5

Social secunty costs 7,041 3809
3,233 1,676

95706 46358

Other pension costs

The Grous provices z defired contributior schemes for its employess in the UK The amaount recognised as
an expense for the defined contribut.or scheme s shown in the able above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022 2021
Number = Humber
1032 &9

ACrirestration 631 348

3 3
1666 1050

P - ~ PORE

The Company nad one employee other tnan Directors during tne pericg enced 30 June 2022 (2021 none).

ot BT G o LR
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
N

2022
£ 000

o B2 e R e

Crnolumerits 176

PP IRA IR A sy 2 T SRR s £ TS VLR S b g 86T 29039 RA AR LTI b st R LB 4 SR BRRARS s e s

2021
£7000

AR AL B

163

During the year no pensicn contnbations weare made in resgect of the dirsciors (2021 nonel

Tre Group has ne other key managenent (2021 nore)

5 .

A number of sunsidiaries of the Group operate a casr setted LTIP to gJal fying empioyees, whereby

employees render services n exchange for casn, tne amount of which is deermised by reference 1o e

13

valuat on of the underiying subsdiary, Tne !

air value of the lianisy for the awards made 1s measured at each

recorting date and at the settlement cate. The fair valus is recognses over the vesting perad the amount

of expence recognized takes nto account the best avaldable esumate of the number of unts expected to

vest urder the service and perfarmance condinors underlying each aweard granteo

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022
Number of
awards

1.914 751
. 1,763, 563
Closing outsiandmg balance 3 678 314

Cpe~ng out

wding

Grarted derng s

2071
Nurriber of
awam's

l 640 OOO

2/4 751
1 C‘1411 751

The total charge for the year was £3,133.000 (2021 £1 334,000) and at tne 20 June 2022 there was &

Latisty of £E2407 000 inciuzsd with i Cracitors greatar (-an one yaar (2021 £1,334,000}".

&

Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
£'000 E OOO

Iriterest o0 bhank balar 130 997

Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021
E’DOO £ OOO

Irigrest on bank corrowings 32 192 34, 3?8

Arorisat on oF ssue Co3is on bank borrowirgs 2,597 1163

fPro‘“ Hoss onder vatve Soarca instrurmenrts (1 ZIS] 587

33,554

26,068
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
oo
a) Analysis of charge in year

{restated)
2022 2021
L
K coraomation tax charge on nrofit/(loss) for the year (297) Le4e

ACJustmienis in resgent of prior periods 3,196 (2.866)

Foregr tax sufferd 5,641 -
fotat cutrent tax charge/icredin 8,540 (1,218

Deferred tax:

Crgination ara reversal of trning aforonces 6,227 2074

Adpastrments N respact of prics pencds (3,741) {3,998)
5,268 11,491

Fect of change
7.754 9,567

intas raes

“ctal deferred ax

Tax éﬁarge on prréﬁtl(loss) on ordinary activities 7 o 16,294 ‘ 8,343

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year 15 higher (2021 Figner) than the standard rate of corparation axn e LK of
19% (2021, 19%; The differences ars explainad below.

(restated}
2022 2021

£000 £000

ot ek 2t 5k R FA R RRATRAR R Mh A4t s KRR ek e

Profit/{loss) before tax 47,604 (21,170)
Proft/iloss) before tax rultiplicd oy standa-d rate of
corporaton tax in the U of 19% (2020 19%)

Effects of

9,045 (4.022)

Expenses not deductibie for tax purgoses 11,723 16,075
Other effects (868} 1022
Incorne not faxable for tas purposes (8,102) (8.351)

Adjustments in respect of prior paricds {545) (6,865)
Ffecis of charge in tax rates 5,041 11489
Total tax charge for the year 16,294 8,349

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted or 10 June 2021 increased the rmain rate of UK corporation tax from 19% o
25%, effective 1 Apnil 2023, Deferred taxes on the balance shest have been rmeasured at 25% (2021 25%)
which represents the fulure corporation tax ~ate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.

MNote 28 details tne prior penos ad-ustments.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
2 O A S S G

Software Goodwill Development Total
{restated) rights
Group L £000 o £000 _£000 £'000
o [N e SRR b 3« 7 - e [T —— A
A1 Juty 2071 restatec) 964 726,602 10,216 737,782
Acquired through businass - 30,042 4058 34,100
combinaions note 27
Addit ans 2,125 - 1.040 3,165
- (21.118) - (21.118)
on \rorf‘a"\,m - 7930 - 7930
At 30 June ZbZZ S 3,08 o 743 456 7 15314 : 761,355
Accumulated amort|sat|on -
At Gy 2021 {rostatedd 107 159,902 1034 161,043
Disposas - (2.462) - (2.462)
Loss on translauon - (192) - {192)
Irrpairreient - 7913 - 7913
( har;? or the yo ar 12 37,314 523 3/’ 849
At30 June2022 0 aus 202475 1557 208181
e bQOK.;é,lue e+ e+ st e e e s e e S v T
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540,981 13,757 557,708
At 20 \Juncr: Zlm”e siated] o 8‘57 - 565 700 9 182 o 576739

The gan on translat o~ of foreign currency denorinated goodw L is reccgnised in other corprehersive
ncome, Amertizeiion of goodwli s charged 10 administrat an cosis

Detals of tre subsidares acquired during the year endeo 30 June 2022 can we found in note 27

Dur ng the year the group dsoosed of 2 wona farms in Firtand, as a result £2 5 of accumulated goodwil
amortizaron was recogrisea in the curent yea” and £19 Im of gooowil. was reatisec on the sale Gain on
sale recogrised in tre proft and loss 11 relaton o tris transaction was £28m
Imparar: of £7%m nas besr recognised on gacawill 12021 ~one),
N assets nave oeen pledged as securty for isbates at year erd (2020 none!

- .

Tre Corrpany had no ittangible assets a7 30 Jure 20522 (2021 nonel.

Mote 26 cetals the pror pencd adustments

!
1
i
i
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G ing

Land and Power Plant and Network Assetsunder Total

buitdings stations machinery assets  construction {restated)

{restated}

Group £'000 £000 ) £'000 £'000 £°000
é;;tﬁ b AR e CRE A€ LB RS RN TR AR L 8 5 6 bt s (T 1§ T, ST Sy — o
At Sy 2020 restated] 8,531 317467 1695437 27,288 45,7277 2,092,600
Add tons 829 1536 7Eed7 60,462 238,008 374,480
AeauIres Ihiou ous nes 1308 - 51,344 - 57663 110,315
FX{fzir valun moverrent - - 368 - 3,294 3,662
Transfers - 68 1066 20936 132,070} -
Disposals (135} - 175,851) - - {76,08€)
At30June2022 10533 319,071 1745911 118,686 310,170 2,504,371
Accumulatéd depreciation 7 - ‘ . ‘ - - S
A1 July 2521 4,410 80059 414559 1290 - 510,318
Crarge ‘or the year 183 17130 81,141 2,245 - 101,802
Csposals - - 1182) {221} - {403}
F‘/ rMcyeren - - (7763 - - (776)
At 30 June 2022 4,593 107,189 494,742 4,417 - SiU 941
oo e e e < o @ 2 et e ¢ on ot 2 % @ e e .
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
AL A0 .Jur‘\.é 2@-27]7\}6‘;@“%(}:‘ 41721 227408 1280878 255958 5277 1,5é1,682
Included within tangiole assets capitalised finance costs directly attributable to bringing tre asset 1IN

use, The net carrying amount of ets netd under fnance leazes

ncluded noplant, machinery, fixtures and

as e
fithngs s £51. 785 000 (2021 £51.53 4 00 ). :ncluded in network assets 15 & prov sicn of £1,023.000 for

obsciete equipment and deveiogment

The

Lh

Company Fad no targible aszets at 30 June 2022 (2021, nong)

Note 26 detalis tne prior neriod adjusiments
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Unlisted
investments Total

’000

e St e R Rk R e measan a0 0 0 0 2T T ¥ ¥ ¢ METET ¥ Ch TURTTNGMA TEDIRAY % RIEKEEL EEL0QLIERELK,Srke R ik ok o bt e <o mbme e

Cost and net hook value
At Ly 2021 11,000 11.600
Adcitons 125,452 129452

35,452 35,452
At 20 Jure Z021 11.00G 11,000

(105,000 {105.600)

Subsidiary
undertakings Total

Company E'000 E'000

RS AL b o han b o ve o aa s man e S 48w e e P G mme ok mEaEa e m o m e e et LR L S RN GBS Db Y A B B b0

Cost
Ab 30 Jire 2021 7311678 2,311,678
Adaitions 228,300 228,200

[B]] >paaal‘ - -

At30June2022 A R e e

Accumulated :mpa:rments
At 30 Jure 2021 198,312 195,212
Reversal of imparrrents {195,312) (195,312}

i'ﬁpd\rrﬁp"lf‘ - -

At 30 June 2022 - -
Net book value

At
Iz

Sune 2021 2116266 2116366

30

June 2022 2,539, 978 2 539 973

Cetails of related undertakings are shown i note 29

Unlstes invesiments compnse the Group's hoidirg of e memibers captal o7 Tende LLE 2 lerdin

business, anc its srarenolding in Bracke~ Traging Lmited Fer~ co-foundec Tendo LLF in Ociobker
the intention of conducting a proooruon GF its “Gtare trace through the partnarsk p Addit os and dispasals

of L sied Irvesiments relate to mvestmients and divesirnents i Terido LL2 n lire witm Ferr's cash
requiremerts snd to ubize \urp Lz funds. Fern has a smal. thareholding in Bracken Tradirg vrited fram
trae TG time Fern's investmert i Sracken Trading Lirites at 30 June 2022 was ENU( 30 Jurne 2021 £nl}

The drectors do not consider T\, ido LLP or Bracker Tradirg Jimitea 1o be subsdary underiekings of -—ern
Trading Liritec.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
b A S RN
Casninciudes cash in nand and deposits repayab 2 on dermand

Restrcted casn represents cash for which the Group does not Fave immediate and direct aczess or for
wiich regulatory or legal requiremerts restrict the use of the cash,

Group
2022 2021
£'000 E'OQO

WG TEANE Y 3 LS ANCRFARG B % RENCREDRE e FRRAE AR A REUEN AR ul nk A 0 RE b hmn mxmmawnas s % mmnn s ne aen (08 wa ta Tad PIRERER

Cashat nark and in rand 195,823 117 141
Restricted cazn 60,592 SJ 337

Cash at bank and in hand S 256,415 172,478

L TN FV T PR PRI P A I AT I

Restr cted casn s comprised of £726.000 neld in Zscrow ard £5% 866 000 of camn heid ir subsidianas witn
pi-arndal distr butorn windows.

The Company had & cast balance of £6,422 000 as at 30 June 2022, none of wrick was restricted (2021

rone;.

32w

Group
2022 2021
E'OOQ‘ - £1000

Asi stoci ) R 1,538 ) ) 2,185
FuLel, epare parts and corsamables 26,023 18593
jrf)pcrt ‘ Ce e o'\memt WP 156 918 73 922

134 479 94 7‘11

The amount of stacks recognised as an expense durng the year was £120,41%,300 {2021 £41,212,000)

ncluded in the fuel, spare parts and consumables stock value 15 a provsion ©f £230,000 for unusabe fue.
stock (2021 £459.0C0) Inciuding in property developrnent WiP 15 a nrovisior of 928,000 for warranty and
site spec. e provisions

There has besn no imoairment recognised during the year or stock (2021 nonel. No invertory has been

pledgec as secunty for lizbilities (2027 none)

The Company had no stocks at 30 June 2022 (2021 nonel
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¥ oo

Group Company :

(restated)

2022 2021 2022 2021 :

. B E'OOD U(JO B ME’OOD ) £000 §

Amounts fallmg due after onek;ear Crmmmm T o o :
Loars and advances 1o cusiomaens 137,662 16,128 - -

Amounts fatling due within one year ‘

Loans ana acyvaroes g customers 223,219 309,384 - - i

Trade acbtors 42,050 16,121 392 8 :
Arnounts owerd by related narties (note 24; - 3,950 32,950 12,751

Cther debiors 20,199 24,972 3,843 5,008 .

Corporation tax - 6,603 2,527 i
Denvetyve Tnancial mstrirrents irote 21 54,409 6,469 - ~

acCres incons 145, 602 154,375 o 176 32,615 .

" e23a61 59800 39888 50383 %

Loarz ard advances o customers are siaied net of orovisicns of £13 874 COC (2021, £18.199,000
Frepaymoents and accrued noome are stated net of provisiors of £7735,000 (26021, 213,741 000 :
No mnterast is anarged on arourts owed by greup underia<ngs, as the cutstanding balarces are unsecured
and repayahle on demand (2021 nonel

MNote 25 details the prics perod agjustments
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b A N P A SISO S LS
Group Company

frastated)
2022 2021 2022

£000 £000 ~ £000

B“m loans and © Vﬁr:irc‘t_ reTe Lb, 87,732 4/’ ’86 -
Trade credrors 58,004 23,350 76
Otmer tarat o0 ard v al securly 8,161 - -
Otner creditars 24,362 55,906 -
Aouris due e related part ez incte 24] - - -
Sirarce legses inote 15) 2,428 2,147 -

Dernvatve dransal nstrur-onts (rote 21 - 143 -
Accrdais ard aefered incorne 72 087 373

255.152 - 202 059 449

N VR Y e N E RS ETRER AN LR LR RN S SR B RE Bt AR R B Y LT T R B S TE PR AL L

2021
£:000

B gea

16

20,203

27OJ
22 924

Group
2022

Amounts fallmg due between one and fwe years E'000

dan« Loafm anrl o.ftrf“raftr rnore 16) 383,070
frarce eases noe 18) 5,899
Dervative financiat mgirurments inoe 21) -

Otner credgitors 5 364

394 333

2021
£000
247297
6,125

J415
2:38 857

Group
2022

Amounts falling due after more than fwe years ~ EF'000

VSR AR i sz s P —
Banic loans and cverdrafts e 6] 573,416
Snarce 2ases (neie 16) 24,676
Dervavve francial instrurrents (note 21 -

598,002

Total credifors failing due after more thar onc year 992,425

2021
£'000

S IR R R B B

577,235
24495
42 772

644 502
503,332

The Cormpany has no creditors due in greater thian one year.
Avrcounts owed 0 related parties are unsecured, non-nterest bearing ard repaysble on demanrd

Note 26 details the prior penod adiustrents,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
3.’% HESPIRIEN [ F S B ‘

2022
Group o E'OOD

b

Dusin ar 87,732

Due betweasn ane and five years 383,070

Due i rrore than

1,044,218

T P L L e L e A SR

573 416

2021

EOOO

47’386
247297

577,235

871,518

The Company had no bank loans at 30 June 2027,

-

The bark loan: are secured against assets of the Group with each loan as beld by the subsidiary showr below

Interest rate 2022
E; momh ‘ON%A pius l 604 429,138
Cedar Lnesgy and nfrastructare Limitedd LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% -

3 month EURIBOR plus
170%, Fixed rate 170%

FEESEEenzectana, o o T MRS s bbb

s Cnergy Him

Llos Energy ¢ 30,946

Fuos Enargy 5 1.2% + 5 ronth EURIBOR 56,079

Poomerang Erergy Lirnitec € month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348

e Dol e e Py s s 649% (swap rate of 4.59% +

LCaringren Poimd Soar —arm Py Lrneed 1.9% margin) 114,026

Melron Rerewable oergy U Lirnted & month SONIA plus 2.35% 85,718

Dulaces WE ~oldes PTY L 17% + BBSY 31,614
o, Eo, -

Flvia Fomes Liritad 5% + SOMNIA + 2 5% non 12,306

utilisation fee

Zosteo Assel Maragement Lrnted Fixed rate 2.5% 43

458 ]40 )

34995

295,344

103439

1044218 a7

o
resuited in no comrmerzial Mmpact o the busness

Finance leases

Tre furure minmurrs France ease oayments are as failows:

rernts gue

ot s one year 2,428
Later tha~ one year ard not ater thar ve years 5,899
l.ater thar five yaars 76,461
Tora £ross sayments 84,788
Loss Anarce charges {51,785}

Carrying amount of the liability ' 33,003

NIA replaces LIBDOR as the effective irterbank lendng rate system from 1 January 2022 Tre rate change
g7 K

2021

3,166
€.196
72,013
81,375
{47.609)
33766

Tre firance leases prmary reate to g leased coilcitg ang reaitocare equipTT ent Trere are no
rental, renewal or purchase option clauses #en:s payaole increase by (cTal nflaton Finance e

seCurec agamnst the leased assets

Trne Corpary had no Arance leases a7 30 June 2022

contingenrt
3383 are
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
IF o o

Decommissioning {restated)

provision Deferred tax
5?&&& OOkt S - SR

-1 duly 20 21 20439 20,933
Increase recognised in profit and (oss 21 11,495
INCrease recoqnised throwgh Sther cornprenensive income - 18,202
Imgarment 16 -
Increase recogrised n fixed assets 23,656 -
Recogrised on subsaary acquisiions - (3,568}
Adiusrrant inrespect of pror years - (5,465}
Jnwirding of discount 245 -
Acustment relating to change i accodnting estimate (3,373) -

Gain on frans.ation 15 -
At 30 June 2022 41,023 41,597

(restated}
Total

.E000

41,772
11,516
18,202
16
22656
(3.568)
(5.465)
249
(3373)
I, .,.hls.
82,620

The decormmissioning provisior 1s held to cover future obligaticns o returr lans on waich there are

operatonal wnd, sicmass and solar farms, to tner ona.nal condiion. The amocunrts are not expected to be

ut lized for n excess of 25 vears
The Company Fad no provisions at 30 June 2322

Note 26 detsils the prior pericd adiuztments

|
o)

The Grouo and Cornpany have tne follow ng share caoital

Group 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid £'000 £000
1816622011 (2021 1496,755,258) .
5186, . &7

Crdinary shares of £0 10 each 161,662 149678
Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully pald ] . - N E'OOO FO00

16622611 120 1456 755 258)
1,616,622 01112021 1.456,755.758) 161,662 149676

Ordinary shares o £0 10 each

During the year the Group 1ssued 119,866,754 (202
aggregate nominal va.ue of £11.987.000 (20 5
consderatior of £203,750,000 (2021 £2.2

11501192275 } ordinary shares of £0.10 each for an
321 ;0.120,0001 Of the shares issued cunng the year, tctal
16,6595,0C0) was paid for the shares, giving rise 0 a premium of




FriY
=
I
f
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

£191 763,000 (2021 £173,118 0201 Durng the year the Graup curcrased il (2021 4,444,020) of its own

ordinary shares of 20 10 each with an gg"rvwm romirg! value of Snil 12021 £444,000] Total ornsderation

rT 1
[
el

o
*J
(@]
(a0

of Eril (2021 56,844,000} was paid for the shares, giving rise to a premium of il (2021

The Grodp has adepied predecessor acoounteg principies as it was formed as part of o g‘oup

reconstructon, therefore the share capital ang share premium account are treated as if t ~ad atways
existed Moverments n share cap=al arising both pefore and afier the restruciire are rﬂﬂorted as moverrents
in the Group share capital.

Durmg the year tne 1:1.501.199,278; ordinary shares of £0 10 each for an

0,000 Of the shares issued during the year, total

consideration of -’:20 © 22,316 695,000 was Dald for the sf‘aw:r givir \q rise t

£191. 764 0C0 (2021 ) (
of

Ordér? r,f shares

aggregate norminal

reg, giving rse to g C'e’mum cEn HZ

Thare 5 & single class of cramary shares. There are ne restiict-ars on the distrbution of dwvdends and the

Cash flow hedge reserve
Tre cash flow hedge reserve is used to record transaclicons arisng “rom the Sroup's cash flow
Fhedging arrangements

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arces from the aiference between the farr value of the shares ssues and the book
alues of tre subsidiares acqgu rec

19 oo
The moverrent in ~or-contrailing rterests was as cllows

Group

Note: 2022 2021
Group £’000 £000

AT L Juty 2 ,91 3,721 9,570

Sale of subsidiary underakings and zcow

) . 27 - (1,842)
Gt non-controling

Torst comrprehens e lnss avnbu-able 1o

non-coniollrg irteresis

(6,622) (4.007)

At 30 Jure 2022 (2 901) 3,721

5o duduigietinuta

g
s X
s g bleginhnnh )
izt SIS Dl wrei ok nt i sl
i e o .m»i S ihrie

AAVREMRERAE S i o T
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
24O

<

ngencies acress the Group cr Compan

et

Carryirg amounts of fnanciat assess ana liatxlites

Group Company
{restater;
2022 2021 2022
Group ) o £000 £ OOC
Carrying amount of fmancml assets
Debt instraments measured at amortised oot 423,150 430,556 4,235 17,767
Meastired at far value through profl and loss - 6469 - -

V‘.La:,u Ld af f4

g U t Wmuh @frﬂr L-(,"T prrr“ 1504 INCOMe 54,409 - - -

Carrying amount of financial liabilities

Mezsed gt amortised cost 1,126,163 956,384 76 16
Measured a: fair value through otner comprehensive ncome - 42772 - -

Note 26 details the pner pericd adjustrents,

S
ik % LAON o
Fo s Eaad hak

é&:m.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 1

Derivative financial instruments
The Group's Fnancaal nsk management seeks 1o minimis
and cash fiow rsk, and energy market rnisk

> the exposure 1o market risg, credd nsk, hguidity f

a) Market risk
Energy market risk

The energy sector s expenencing signifcant turbulence and i nsk that forecast ievels ol Income are !

not achieved due to changes in wholezale energy pricas, off-take cortracts or goverament subsidies ;
Changes in Government policy, or r-agulato ntervention may resdlt in recuced Income streams within the |
groun due to addit onal ey es, :

Currency risk .

Tre Grouo presents ity consolidated fi-ancia staterments in stering and conducts business i a number of
other currencies, princ.pally Euro and Austrzlian dollar Consequently, the Grouo 1s exposecﬁ o foreign

excharge r sx aue 1o exchange rate moverents, which affect tre Group's transacional axpensas and the

ranstation of earning and net assets of s non-sierl ng DoeraLo”s ;

Transactional exposures
Transactiona exposures arise from administrat ve .

i other experse ir currencies other than the Group's

preseriational cur-ercy Sterlngl The Group enters in o ‘orwars fareign exchange contracts and foreign .
epts The :
forward currency coniracts and swaps are measured at far value, which is determ ned using vauauor

arge swaps to mitigate the exchange +ate risk for certan foresgn currency payab.es and rec

rechrigues that utlise ob

|
i

zervable inputs The key inputs used in vaiu ng e derivatives are the forward
excharge rates ior GBPAUD ana GaPEUR. On 30 June 2022 the far va.e of the foreigr ¢
of £ri (2021 262,000 ard a lambty of Er [ (2021 £143,000)

Lrrency

contracts was an ass

Translational exposures

Batance steet ranslational cxposdres arise on consolidaton on t-e retrarsiat.an of the balance sneet of
ror-sterling operations into sterling, the Group's presentanoral currency The level of exposure 15 Teviewss
by managemert a~d the potental foreign exchange rrovemenrt 15 within an accegtable level of risk and
therefore. tygic

e

Uy, the Group's policy to nat to sctvely nedge these exposures ;

Interest rate risk

The Groun nas exposare to fluctuations in interast ratas on is borrowings Where the Groug eners into

borrcwing arrangernents with floaimg rate rterest, a swap arrangemrert 5 entered into 0 fix & coruen of

the ‘nterest in order (o mitgate against an iIncrease n nterest rates. The noruon of interest o e Faed s

A55E55eC O a ase by cate basic Maﬂage’rem an eect whether to nedge account for (hese

arrangerments on ar irde dual ratsact on tas s and nave elected © apely Fedge ac C“urt?ng for nterest ‘

r3te swaps. The swaps are tased on g prrocal amicunt of the lcar fac iy ard matare on tre sarme cafe

Price risk
The Groun s a 310r- 12 mecium-term iarder to thea resident.al property market 7o the exter: (nat trere i |
cdeterioraton in tne ievel of house prices that a™ects tne propetes trat the Croups loans are secured

L

U]

against tnere s a rsx tnat the Group may Not recou KpGiure, Thsis mugatec by the shari-term 3
f

[
rature of the loans arc the conservative level of loar o vaue tnat the Group s pregared 1o iend at
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Credit risk
Custorrar credit r sk s mitigated through the Group's cred T control soices, wiich are in place o ensure
that cur customers have an appropnate cradit hestory and are reonnored o7 30 ongoing bas's.

c) Liquidity risk
Liquuigity nsx ace managad by ensusng that suffoent caszhiis avalable 1o funs continuing ard ‘uture cperation

Licudizy ris< anises an ban< loans in place across the Gro Mp and is managed through carefulm ~g of
covenanis and sensible evels of debt. Borrowing ¢ on a .ong-term basis, whercas our revenue 1s received
thiroughout the year as well as interest and redarnsticors on cur short term 0an boo< Cash flow nsk s

managed through ongoing cash flow forecast:ng o ensure receipts are sufficient to meet lisbitues as they
fas cue

g2

At the year end the Groun hag capiial comimitrrents as follows:

2022 2021
e e et e £000 e EEO0
3 for Sui not providesd in the 347,254 50,156
Unidrawr faciutes on loans to torrowers 173,600 92,683
AT 20 Jurie the Group had total future minimiure lease payments under non-cancellsble cperatirg leasas
as follows
2022 2021
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings Guildings
SE e TEAE. s S ePeLapAr. ee e LRI M e S £ TSR %&E 000 o £'000 £000 £000
: due.\._ . N : -
Mot ater than ones year 8,707 661 8,031 749
Later than ane year and ror later than five 31,627 726 30,365 LE8G
years
Later thor: fve years O ..o AU U
235,998 1 387 157,332 2444

Tre Group had no other off-palance sheat arrargements (2021 none)

Lnder sections 394A and 479A of the Companies Act 2006, the parent company Fern Tradng Limited has
guaranteed al. outstanding lizoihties on thase companies taking the exemption to which the suosidiaries list
on pages /9 ¢ 96 were subject to at the 30 June 2022 unt | they are zatished in full These labilities wotad
£915m Such guarantees are enforceacle agairst Fern Trading Limitea by any person 1o whom any such
uability s due.

Tre Covpany had No Ccapital or other cormimerts at 30 June 2022,
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EF . e oo o o e

O 11 July 2022 Fern Trading Development Ll‘mi\fed ("FTDL”‘ a subs.diamy of the Group, successiully sold

Darlington ~ont Holdco Py Limited o Qctopas Australia Master Trost A srrall profe of 50,000 was made
on tne saie,

On the 1st of Decenber 2022, the Group accuirea rghts to a £25m credit voucher and the ngrt 1o use ‘
robile tcenses from Trree UK, via 2 Strateg ¢ Connectivity Agreerent, thus makng the Arst sieo wowaras ‘

pecern.eg an mobile virtuzl network operator

. e T P e

-

Unaer FES 102 33 1A disclosures need not be given of transactons emigred rio betweesr two or more
t any subs ciary which is a party to the trarsacton s wholly owned by

members of a Group, crovided 0z

such a merrbe

Durng the year, fees of £77934 000 2021 £62,154,200) were charged ©© the Group by Octopus
Investrments Lirnited, & related carty due to s significant influence cvar the enuly Octopus investments
total \I"W” E10..55 {2021 F 16, b

year end, ar amount of £5 ”IO (2021 £215000) was outstand.ng whch g

ar
Limitea was recnarged legal and ;3 ofessiona. 1 by tne Group. AU the

d i trade Crecitors

The Group s enutled to g proft share as 2 result of U nvestment .0 Teqido LLP 2 relgted party due to key
Managern prrrnrmei FLCOMIMOnN N 202? a share of proft equal 1o £5,243,000 (2021 £449,008) nas

been recog:
23545 g

d by the Gre ‘p At the year end, the Group has an interest 1o the member’s capdal of ‘

Ve

[2021‘ £11,U D00 and accrued income due of £5275 000 (2022 £47%.000)

o
C)Jﬁ

Thne Gro.p et

:2ges 11 lending acivites wh onnclade talanc

rice rov dec (o related par? Regard ng
antities with ey maragemeant perscrnel s cormmon, loans of £63,490,000 (20210 £173.224,000), sccruss !
laTa)

ER

ircome of L1978%,000 (2020 £26,205,00C) a~d deferred incore of £r (2021 £101,C00) were cutitardirg :

i
at year end. Durng tne year interest income of £716G.000 (2021 £17.58L000C1 ard fees of £3%4,0C0 (2021
ESB@OL;OI were recognised i relaton 1o thess loans :
Dur:rg the year the Group acgquired 9 reserve power companies from comoanies managec by Octopus

oy

Irvestments Lmited, a relates party See ncie 27 a) for detalls of the commpanies acquired.

As g 30 June 2022 £ni (2021 £3950,275) was owed to the Comparty by Bracxen Tradicg Lmiad, a related ;
Carty by k&y rmanagement personnel in cormmaon ‘

o

Other than the rarsacticns declosed aoove, e Comuany's Sthe ed party ranzachons were witr itz

wholly ownes < ’)”‘diary rembears of the Groug,

Ir the opimon of the grectors, there is No U mate cortroling oarly CF careni CoOmpany. 1
|
i
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&6 o o

a} Group structuring review

We have conducted g review of prior years' accounting treatment of intercompany restructuning in this
review yanagementidentified uramorised goodwill haiances n relation o thaese transactions. We have
adr.sted the previcus years to reflect the implerrentauon of armortisaton backdated (o when the relevart
transachons occurred. Tre accumiulated irnpact for the goodw!l amarasation in the proft and loss for 2021
was L8 (2020 £5 4m) the movement of £2.7 Ras ee restated througnout the 2021 comearative

Aurnbers. A surmmany oF the moact of the correction s provided telow

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)

Group £'000 £'000 £'000

At s g A g AT e ke ks B R kb xR PR ek R A e xE B AR A D e B AP U B A R FRESE S fduh B 8 e hhda ke bR % B % ok xEx e b o whliak < ghynadb s at

Saoowil 583588 (5,335) 578,653
Retaned eamings 41,185 5,335 46,520

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)

Group £'000 £'000 £000

R AR XA © B R SRR RRS RN 1Y

R S RYTE YA AT R F 4 T T € RS A T e X T D K ST AR X AT SEYITTRIE W aTe e cn e

CGoodwil - e02711 O @n4y) 594,662
ketaried earmings (123,520] 8,049 1115871}

As part of the review Of the intergroup restructunng mentioned above, managementigentified ore of e
restructures had peer incorrectly accounted “ar in a sub secthion of the group. No further errors were
discovered n the review The accumulated imgact for gooawill amortisaton n the profit and loss for 2021
was B2 om (2020 £1 3m), the moverreant of £1.2m has been restated throwghout the 2021 comiparative
aumibers This mpact o tne 2020 opening retaired sarnings was offsel Dy 2.1m written back agamnst bad
debt expenses Management have correctad the dentified error wiin the foliow:ng impact.

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)

£'000 £000 £'000

2 et Sitmd kkad 5 2 b i

Concanl 583,988 (29.183) 554,805
Retamed earmings 41 18% 899 42,084
Ceniars 842,549 (2.724) 839,825
Creditors amounts 1slling due within one year (2352.813) 456 {232,317)
Fired assets 1,346,655 30512 1377167

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2621 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)

Group o £'000 _£000 £'000

S S R LR SR R D B B O BB B 8 MR 2 e g e T D O s R SRR BB R

Googwil o 602711 (27,963 574,748
Retained earmings (123920} (321) (124.241)
Dootors 600,726 12,724) 598002
Credtors amounts faling due within one year (207,318} 456 (206,822)
Fixed asseis 1,551,170 30,512 1581682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Deferred tax adjustment

We have conducted g review of all consclicet o entries at subsections of the grouc. We have ident-fed an
error relating to 2019 when aeferred tax acjusiments were entered as a consalidation entry and had
subsequentiy not been reversed We have crhecked tne ax por subsid ary account énd have ensured that the

an
relevant balances are correct, The error was posied at a corzoldated level omly ana has now been correcien

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020

{as stated) {restated}
£000 £000 £000

R bR haks # TR

R R 13033 e ane o 1T P SRR o e

Reraned earrings 41,185 {4,764} 36421
Creditors amounts fallrig que witiin one year (232.813) 4764 {228,049}

This has a knocx effect into June 20721, the restaied balanices are as folows

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
Group B o '000 '000 £000

Retained sarrings 1123920 {4.764) (128.584)
Credinors: amounis faltng due winin one year (207.318) 4,764 (202,554)

N prepanng the tax compatations for 2022, the Group's tax adv.cors have noticed ar overioo<ed

aasumption in previous years tax conschaation calculations Win n tne previously unreccgrised geferred fax
55215 neld wellh N the group sorne were avalable oo a consolida ed wvel 10 offset the Grouo's aeferred tax
akiiity On ana~dividuat cormpary tas's the deferred tax in previcus years nad been correctly recognised. A

par: of these deferrad acsets are in relatucn to cash ‘low nedcas neld witnin the aroup which are accourtes

forwithn other comorehensive income The accumuated irpact ‘or the tax enarge ' tre orchi and lo

[
i

for 2021 was £15m (2020 EL15 2l the movement of 300% has been rectated throughout the 2021
comparative numcers

Azumimeary of the e of the correction s oroviged beow

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group - B £000 £000 £000

Retained sarnmgs 41,185 (15,2931 25888
Cash 4ow hedge reserve 63,837 (2.875) 53,962

LDeferre t1ar provisions 36454) 19,174 (17.310)

B e TR ENN
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Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (vestated]
Group ‘ £000 ) £000 £000
€rtmec‘edr|r~f e e Feee e b ke S b sE Ao s 3 rne > »(j 2392@ “ oy - (139%‘12)“‘
Casn flow nedqe reserve 17,098 (2.119) 14979
Doferred tax provisions B (38.145) 17212 (20,933
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated} {restated)
Group ' ___E000 £000 £'000
Goodwil 583,988 (34,51/) 549471
Cebiors 842 549 12.724] 839,825
F xeq assets 1,346,655 30512 1,577,167
Cefered tax prows ons {36.484) 19,174 {17,310}
Cash fiow hedge 53,837 (2.875) 59962
Creditors arncunts falling due within ore year (232.813}) 5,259 (227,554}
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
~_E'000 - £000 £'000
m( s - LT b \(1212\9)‘””(9{%6559’)&
602,711 (36,011) 566,700
600,726 (2,724) 588.002
Fixed assets 1551170 30,512 1581682
Defarrad tax provsions (28,145) 17,212 (20,933}
Cash flow necge reserve 17.098 (2,119} 14,975
Creditors amounts falling due within one y=ar 20/.318) 5259 (202,059)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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i

a) Reserve Power acquisition 4
On 2 July 2021, the Group acquired 9 rezerve power stes througn the aurchzase of 100% of the share capita, 3
for consideratan of £18. :
!

Howing tasles surmarse the consiaerghion paid by the Greus, the far vaiue of the assets acguired,

and e liapiities assumed at the acquisition date :
|

Ef\nsidefg}ion o £'000
Total consideration - - - ;

Detals of ine fair valoe of the retl assets acaures and goodwil arsng are as folows

Book value Adjustments Fair value
£000 f:opp £000

P st 80788* A (28553; . 52235 .
Trarie and Cthar receivaties 294 - 294

renayrers 635 - 6535 1
Cash and Cash equivalets 7,858 - 7,858

Trade ana Giber creditors (2.208) - (2,206) :
lLoans (58.816) - 158,816) ;

Net assets acquired 28,555 (28,553) ~ i

Goodwill —-
Total consideration -
Zoodwell resuting from tre Gusiness combiraticn was nil

.
Tre consalidates statement of corrprehiensive ncorre for the yvear 'nciuces £45 803,200 revernius a~d a :
profi s'ter tax of LC86,000 n respect of this acguis don 1
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b} Doveryard Limited acquisition

OCn 22 October 2021, the Group acgured Doveryard Limited and its subsichary througn the purchase of

100% of the share cagital for considerauon of £13 414 600,

The following tables summarise tre consideration paid by the Group, the fair vaiue of assats acquired. ans

labilihes assurned at the acguisitcn date.

Consideration

ot o e e kB B S AR £ R s R A A N SR L LKA AN R 4 RY PSR SR S s 4

Cash

Cirectly at

utanle costs

Total considerati;')n

AN ESIRATE VAP R PR 4 Tk

£000

LaEEEAREES R wpvn

12.377
1037

13,414

Detals of the farr value of the ngt assels acaured and goodwall arisirg are as foliows

B FD e BT mmten mmannnt St whaxnt ae dxmios Wi Rxahxomhent smeah .

Book
values

£000

Adjustments

Fair
value
E'G0O0

Fixed asseis
Trade anc oner recervanles
Prepaymerts ang acorued incorme

ade anc other craditors

Net assets acquired

569
52
193

(467
347

569
52
193
(467)
347
13067

13,414

years, refleciing the ifespan o the assels acquired.

nefore tax of £123,000 in respect of this acquisition,

iting from the business combination was £13.067000 arnd nas an estimated Jseful life of 25

The censolidated stafement of compranensive income for the year ircludes £nil of revenue ang a loss
2
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

c) Dulacca acquisition
On 27 Auguast 2021, e Group acquired Dulacca WE Boldeo 2TY Lio ana its three subsidiaries through the
purchase of W0% of the snare capal for consicerauon of £115,680,000

Tre ‘ciowing tables zummarise tne considerator paid oy the Group, t7e “ar vawe of the assets acquired,
and he labilites assume at the acguizitor date A wst of the entiles acgured included 1n note 29

Consideration ) L AUD'000 Exchange Rate £000
C,fT e e e e e e 21755}” e - e
D'r’@f‘tl) atiricitable cosis 1.126 189@4 595
Total cons:deratlon - - o ‘ - 218 6;3’“ . o . 1i5,680
Detads of the far value of the net assets acauires and ntangible arising are as follows:
Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value
L AUD’OOO AUD 000 AUD'000 £000 E'000 __E000
Trade and other recevables 10,131 - 10,131 5,357 - 5,357
105,072 - 103.072 54525 - 54,525
fID 954) - (10,952} (5,793) - 793)
ﬁet assets acquired - 209 884 - 209 884 WJTII.,OZS u u - 111 026 7
Irﬂrgr‘ \bt - S 8799 S 4654
Total consuderatlon - S 218,683 S ”7115,680
intangibles resulting fror the et purchase was £4,654 000 ana has an estimated usefui ife of 30 years,
reflecting the Ifespan of the assets acquired

Tre conscl datea staternent of comrprehensve income for the year inc udes £ni of reverue and a loss after

a
tax of £237.000 1in respeact of this acquisitor
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 January 2027, the Group acgured Zestec Agset Mangernant Limited a project sources for rooftog
solar, through the purchase of 100% of the share casital for cons:deration of £4 765 000,

The followang tacles summarise tne conzideration pad by the Group. the fair value of assets acguired and
uabiltes assurned at the acquisition date

C?nﬂd?ratlon ) ) o » o £000
Defered consideration -
Drectly attribistscte costs 1,093
Totél'conéideration . S - - 4,765
Cetals of the far vaiue of e net assets acquirad and goodw I arising are as folows
Book Adjustments Fair
values vatue
£'000 £000 £000
Fired assets S " BT - 156
Traae and otner credrors (574) - (574)
Trade and otner recewvailes 400 - 400
Casn arnd cash equivalents 1018 - 1.019
Oth er ‘earns {46) - (46
Net assetsacqu:red - S 955 - 955
o A e ST Mwwm3810
"I"otalcor;slidieiriatilon FE . wwé:}'ﬁsw

Coodwill resditing from the cuz'ness combination was £3,810,000 and has an estimated useul life of 10
vears, reflecting the est mated lifespan of the assets acquired.

The corsciidated siatement of comorehenrsive income for the year includes £198,600 of revenue and a loss
before tax of £494,000 in respect of this acguisiton,




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e) Elivia Homes acquisition

On 23 May 2022, the Group acquired Elivia ~icld'ngs Limited and its subsidiaries, trough the purchase of

100% of the share capial for consideration of £31,684,000

Tre following tabies surmrmanse the consigerstion paid oy the Croug, tne far vaiue of assets acouired, and
l

o
labdibies assumed at the acousiton date, A list of the ennties acquired are included in note 29

;onsi:{eration £'000

685
31,684

Directly astnha

Total consideration

Detats of the far value of ine net assets acquires ana gocdwil ansing are as follows.

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
£'000 » £'000 £000

Fixexcy 418 - 418

Irtangiole assens

Ziock

Trade and other debtors

Cash and cash eqguivatents
Accruals and defsrred incorme
Frovisions

Deferrad tax

T olner credtors

Net assets acquired
[etets il

Total consideration

11,767
69,939
2609
11,603
{420])
{(930)
5,000
(€945

51,533... IR

- 11767

- 69,939

- 2,609

- 11603

- (426)

- (930}
1.4008 4,600

- (60,453)
30133
T iEs1

31,684

Goodw il resulung from t—e business cormbinat-on was £1,551,000 and ha

years, reflecting the lifespan of the asses acqureo.

Tre consoldateg statement of comprehens ve nocome for the vear naiuces revenue of £25 334 C00 and a

proft cefore tax of £1.502 000

morespect of this aoguisitier
£
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Our rencrted resuits are prepared 1 accordarce wite United Kingdom Accounting Standards, inclucing

Fmarcial Reporunig Standard 102, as detaled nthe Fnancial Statements starting on paae 35 of the Annual

Repor: In measuring our persrmansze, the inancizl measures that we use nclude t1ose that nave Deen

derved from our repartes results in order to eiminate factors that d start year-or-year compansors These j
are corsidered rion-GAAP financiz! measdras

H

Net debt
We provide net deot in add ion to cash and gross debl as a way of assessing our overzll cash pesicon and 't

s cormputed as foilaws. i

2022 2021
£Q00

SR S R e et s S e i

NQ@ £

ank ioans ane cverdrafis 3] . 2 .
Bank foans ar erdraf 16 1,044,218 871.918
14, 15 5 J64 -

Gross debt S 4, 049 582 871,918
1 {256 A1), (172.478)

L dsh 4t ba"w dr\\J ir ha

Net debt 793,167 699 440
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

EBITDA ?
Earmings before interest, tax, deprecation and arortisaton "ERTEA" is cawculated by adjusting profit after
tax for irterest, tax, depreciahon and amordisation, in additior 1o income ang experses that oo nat relate to
the day to day operat'ons of the Group We provide EBITDA in addit or o proft arter tax as i allows us ©
assess our perfermance without the effects of financing and capita. expenditures

The following table detais the adgjusiments made o the reported results

{restated)
2022 2021
N . Note £'000 E'C00
Proﬁti(loss)forthe fmam::al year ¢ et e e o S e e Mﬁﬂﬁhﬁb (3101&
Add
37849 37704
7913 -
101.802 84697
33,554 36,067
Exceptional items 1.105
Tax / 16,294 8,349

%)

Arnortisaton of ntanginle assets

Irnparrnent of intang bie assets

[RSIe

Depreciation of :angble asse™s

Irteest payable and sirilar expenses

[

les5s
Ircomme from other Aves asset rvesiments (5.249) {449)
Shiare of coeraung Groqrin joint venture - 11,755)

Froft or a.spasal of subsidianes {29,532} (28.568)
Irterest recevable ared sirmitar incorme & (130) {997

EBITDA 154,916 104,036

rcte 26 details the prics period adjustments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

i B N

Details of the subsidiary undertakings are as follows,

Country of Class of Principal
Name i o Ncorparation  shares Holding activity .
Abbots Rpton Soi:anthme:rgy Heled-ng Lim ted™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Adaurda Soiar SPV 1 Limited” UK Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
Agrisol-2 SARL? France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Al Networks Limited”™ UK Ordinary 10C% Holding company
Allpoints Fibre Limited® UK Ordinary 100% ;értgsumcit;\;ork
Ascnencarrocn Erergy Limitee®” UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Alquhrie Land Campany Lirrited™™” UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
Avenue Soiar Farm Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Banbury Power Limitec”™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Bausoare 5 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batsolalre 7 AR France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bootley energy Liruted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Beighton Erergy Lirited’ UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Beinnewn Wind Farrn Ltd™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Belhcuse Fnergy Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Fnergy generation
Birch Zstate Solar Linuted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
B.aoy Solar Farm Lirited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
BNRG IOW Lirmitcd™ UK Crdmnary 100% Energy generation
Bolam Erergy timied” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Boomerang Energy Limited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Boreas Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 1007% Holding company
Eratton Flemirg Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Breck Solar Lim-teg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Eﬁ::ﬂ:é{;@dm solar Develgpments Holcings UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Eryn Yr Odyn Solar Developmerits Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bury Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cadorton Reserve Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Caicias tnergy Limited’ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company

Cark Lirnited® freland Ordinary 100% Energy generation




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principat

Name o incorporation _shares  Holding activity oo
Caswell Solar Farm Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cathkin Erergy Limited®” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Causilgey Limnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cedar Erergy and fastructure Lamited UK Ordinary 1G0% Holding company
CEPE Barceraonre SARLY France Ordinary 160% Erergy generation
é?;ig;ii%gi?ge de Producuon a energie ds France Crdinary 100% Energy gereration
CERE de 2 Salesse SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
grirjjct‘(iEthar}C::je{gZ:tiacleig'!)e;?&ge France Ordmnary 100% Energy generation
CEPEZ de Marsanne SAR T France Ordinary 100% Energy genreration
CEPZ Faut gu Saule’ France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CEPET de la Roche Quatre Riveres SARL France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CEPE du pays de 5t Seine 5ARL7 France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CERSSAS France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Crelson Meadow Erergy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Chishor Solar Farm Holdings Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Chittenrg Selar Two Limates™ UK Crdinary 160% Energy genzration
Cilgwyr Energy Lirnited’ UK Crdinary 100% Dormant company
Clanrn Farm _imiten™ UK Crdinary 1007% Energy gereration
Clararmond Sclar SPV 1 uimited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
(L™ Bevelooments Limted” UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
CL® Ervirogas Lim ed” UK Ordinary 100% :é?:i;m of D&M
CLP 3erviees Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Dormant company
CL¥E 1992 Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Dorrnant company
CLPE 1999 Lirad” UK Crdinary 100% Holding compariy
CLPE Aolaings wmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Hclding company
CL=E Srojects L Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
CL=E Projects 2 urited™” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
CLPE 2rojects 3 Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Hclding company
CLPE RCC -1 Lmad” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE RZC = 2 Limes™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation

CLPE ROC - 3 Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

CLPE ROC = 4 Limited”

CLPE ROC — 24 Limite™

Clyre Power Lim:ted”

Cnlsterworsn Friergy Limirerd™
Connon Bridge crergy Limited™
Cotesbach Energy Limited”™

Cour Wind Farm (Scotland) smred™?™
Craprel Farm Umited™

Crayfern Homies (Scuth Coasty Limirad?

Crayfern wmitedh

Crayierm Sunley (Slinfoldy Lirn teght

Crayrnarsh Lirited™

[

ressing Solar Farm Limitea™
Culvery Poyer Lirmited™
Cynon Power Lirnited”

Dafan Beserve “ower Limited™

Dairy House Solar Limited™

M

Cespdae Farm Sclar cimited™

o

Doveryard Limited™”
Crapers Farm Limuted”
Dulacca Erergy Project Co PTY L2

Dulacza Energy Project FInCo BFTY Lidh?

Dulacca Energy Project Hoidco Co PTY Lig-

Dulacca WF Heldeo PTY Lg?e
Dyffryn Brodyn Limited”
Eaknng Lenited”

flecsol Camargue SARLY

lecsol Frarce 7 SARL?

s

Eiecsol Frarce 11 SARL®
Eecsol Frarce 15 SARL

Elecscl Frarce 19 SARL*

Country of Ctass of
; incorporation shares N
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordirary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
Australia Crdinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary

Holding activity

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
90%

S0%

100%
100%

Principal

Energy generatio;w
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generationr.
Erergy generation
chergy generation

Develocpment of
building projects

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
building projects

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Erergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation

R TR S A
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

b s S PR WA e

Flecsol France 22 SARL®

Elecsol France 24 SARL?

Elecsc Frange 25 SARLY

Elecso. France 28 SARL®

Eiecsol France 41 SARLY

Elecsoi aut var SARLT

Elios Energy 2 France 5A5°

Elos Energy 2 Lirmted

Elios Eneray 3 France SAS

Elics Erergy Holgings 2 wimited”
Ehos Energy Holgings & Lirmnited™
Elios Energy Hotdings Limitea™
Elios Renewable Energy Lim ted”
Elvia Develcgrnent F nance Limed**

Elv g Holdimgs Lamited

Flivia Homes (Centra.) Limitad?!

Elvia Homes (Dormant 21 Lirriteg’?

Elria Homes (Grange Road) Limiteg™?
Eloviz Homes (Nettey) Limited"”

Elivia Homes (Southernt Lmited
Elivia Romes (Surbitor) Lrniteat?

Elivia Homes Limmateat

Elivia Mortn Lirmi zed™

Elivia Oxforg Limitegtt

Elviz Soutn Limted

et R s

Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation

Erergy generation

domestic buitdings

nolding companics

domestic buildings

domestic buildings

domestic buildings

domestic buildings

domestic buildings

domestic buitdings
Buying and seliing of

Country of Class of Principal
incorporation shares o Holding _activity
France Ordinary o 100% “El:;“ergy generation
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100% Energy generat:on
France Ordinary 100%
France Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
france Ordinary 10G% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Construction of
Ordinary Financial services
UK Deferred 100%
Preference
UK Ordinary 100% Construction of
UK Crdinary 100% Construction of
LK Ordiriary 100% Construction of
UK Ordinary  100% g;(jlsgp’;gggf
LK Ordinary 100% Construction of
UK Ordinary 100% Construction of
UK Crdinary 100% EETE:;Q%T;C?Z
UK Crdinary  100% Eﬁjﬁfgﬁiﬁi
Construction of
UK Ordinary 100%
own real estate
UK Ordinary 100% Construction of

dormestic bulldings

BRI SR
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Country of Class of Principal
Name ) __incorporation shares Holding activity
s ke e bR b R R VB 5 R —

Eiva Southerr Lirnted® UK Ordinary 100% gi;?:;t;aslii;?iii:gsof

own real estate
Eiicormoe Linm:ted™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation

Energy proiect
Energy Power Resources Limited” UK Ordinary 100% r:iw&;rf;;pe:qnz:tt and

SEIVICES
EPR £y Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
EXR eye Limsteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
EFR Glanford Lirrsted™ UK Ordinary 10G% Energy generation
EPR Renmewable Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
EPR Scotland Limited®” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Tretford L:rutea™ UK Ordinary i00% Energy generation
Eucalyntus Energy Holdings Lirmitea”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Eucalyntus Energy Lamited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Feltwel. trergy Limitea™ LK Ordinary i00% Energy generation
Fern Energy Cour Holdings Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Ferr Energy Hold:ings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Energy Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Ferr Energy Wind Foldings Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Fiore Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holching company
Fern Heaihcare Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Infrastructure Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Renewable Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Rooftop Solar (A} Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Rooftop Solar (BBDY UK Ordinary 100% Fnergy generation
Fern Rooftop Solar {(Zestec) Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Trading Developrment Limied™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Trading Group Limited UK UK 100% Holding company
Fern UK Power Developrnents Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fibrophos Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Supply of fertiliser
Four Burrows Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation

Fraistnorpe W nd Farm Limited™ UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
B ___incorporation shares Holding activity .
UK Ordinary 100% Dorrmant company
Giganet Fibre Ltg” UK Ordinary 100% Fibre network

production
Fibre network

Ciganet Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% oroduction

G enchamber Wind Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Grange Wing Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
GLardbride 52 z.o.0b Paoland Ordinary 1C00% Energy gereration
Harbourne Power Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Haymaker (Mount Mill) Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
Haymaker (Natewood! Holdgings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Haymaker (Natewood] g™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Haymaker {Oakiands) Holdings Limrited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Haymaker (Cakiards) @™ LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Helm Poweer 2 Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Heim Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Helding company
Highar Knapp farm Limed” Uk Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hit End Farm cmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hollarmeor Limitec™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Huti Reserve Power Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hursit SV 1 Limited”” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Irmmincharm Power Lirited '™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
revell Power Lirzed” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Jamesor Road Energy Umited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Jurassic Fiore Aclaings Limitea”™ UK Ordinary 90% Helding company
Jurassic Fibre Limited Uit Ordinary a0% Sg:urztgfrk

Kin Power Limted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Lanigan Power Lirmited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Lenkar Solar mted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Little T Scaar Lirrited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Littleron So.ar Farm Lirmied™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LLIU Communications Lid™ UK Ordinary 100% Flbre network

production

Ledaon Power Limitea” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
N e ot e e oinCOrpOration shares W~~~ Holding activity | .o
Lovedean Limited” UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Luminance Solar Lirnitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
ML2 Sonnens Lired™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Marstor: Thorme tirmged” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
March Energy rnitea” LIk Qrdinary 100% Erergy generation
Marden Power vimited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Marley Thatch Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Meadows Farm Uimited”™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Meibourr Solar U mited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Meiton LG Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Me.ton LS Eoldng Limitea™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Melion LG ROC Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% ég?i;fﬁ;mg
Melion Renewabile erergy (roldingz) Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Meion Renewable Erergy Newco Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Melton Renewabie Energy UK Lmited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Mill HiL sarn Soiar Jimited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Mirgay Farm Holding Limnited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
MEP Decoy Ltd™” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
MSP Strete Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MSP Tregasscw uimited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
MTS Hatcrnlands Solar g™ LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Nevern Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
New Row Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
hewlands Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ninnis Farm Linrited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
North Perrott Fruit Farm Limited”” UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
MNorthwich Power Limiteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
MNotos Erergy Limitec™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Ogmore Power Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Oldhail Energy Recovery Holdings Lirmized™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Cine Ashford Healtricare Lirmited UK Ordinary  89% Sg;\ftiﬁ?;iewaces
One Hatfierd Hicspital Lirmited UK Ordinary  90% Provision of

healthcare services
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

FHEPAIRRTER TR ¥ 38T R T 1 RER R T ey o

One Healtncare Partners Limted

Orta ¥edgehil. sclar Holdings Limited™
Crta Wedgehill Solar Liruted™

Falfreys Barton Lirmited™

Parciau Hoidings Lim ted”

Parciaiu

%)

Lirrited™
Park Broadband Limited™

FPearmat So.ar 2 Lid™

Pitchford (Condover Arfe o & Steoxbatah)
Limited™

Fitts Farm Limmated ™
Porinos Soa Limited”
Pyms Lane Solar Lid™

Cueens “ark Road Energy Lirnited™

Rangeford Care Limited™
Rarigeford Chertsay Lirmited”
Rangeford Cirencesier uimitea”

Rargeford Dorking Limiteg™

Rangeford BHodings Lirmiteg™

Rangeford Pic<enng Limited”

Rangeford RAP Limited™

Rangeford Stapieford Limed™

Sammat SARL
S5eloy Powe” Lermitag’

Country of Class of
comiifiCOrporation  shares
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
LK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
LUK Ordinary
LIK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
B1¢ Ordinary
UK Ordinary
France Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary

Principal

Holding activity

85%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

L s A RO e B B RN S8 AR T TN b R K (s m

Holding company
Helding company
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Helding company
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy gereraticn
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Care services for a
retirement village

Retirement vitlage
development

Retirerment village
development

Retirement village
development

Helding company

Retirement village
developrnent

Retrermnent village
development

Haolding company

Retirerment village
development

Energy generation
Energy generaton
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
N e oo et s . IMCOTPOFtion | shares .. Holding activity e :
Singrug Holdings Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Singrug Limired”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Six Hills Lane (Ragdate) Lirmiteg™ UK Grdinary 100% Energy generation
Skelorocke Frieray Linrted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
slaugntergate Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Snetterion Renewaote Power Suels bimited™ UK Ordinary 100% fSuUe[Tpty of bromass
Snetterion Renewan.e Power Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
Snetterton Renewable Power Limited” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Scrarh 1208 SARLY France Ordinary 10C% Energy generation
Sotarh SPOL SARLS France Ordinary 10C% Energy generation
Solarfi SPC2 SARLY France Grdinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi SPG4 SAR! France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sclarf SFGS SARL! France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfh SPO& SARL France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfh 5P10 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Southcombe Facm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
St Asaph Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Parkrouze Solar Lirmied” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Sreaafast Kudge Soiar Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Saplon Belinger Solar timied” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stellar Power Limmated™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
Storevhili Energy Lirmiteg® UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Sues znergy Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Summerston Energy Lirmited®” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sunley Crayfern Lavant LLP* UK NA 50% NA
Swish Fibre Contraciing Limited® UK Ordinary 100% Sggur;?:nom
Swish: Fiore Limited? UK Ordinary a0% Holding company
Swish Fibre Notworks itd? UK Ordinary  100% Srz"jur;‘fg\’no'k
Swish Fibre Sernces Lirmited® UK Crdinary 80% ;i:;rg;;?g;ork
Swish Fibre Yorkshire® UK Ordinary 1G0% Hibre netwark

production

Swish Trading Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 80% Holding cormpany
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
TGO Solar 107 Umited” UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
TGO Solar €8 Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
TCC Solar 83 Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
The Farn Power Compary Limited”” UK Ordinary 160% Halding company
The totlies Solar Farm Limites” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Trgresty Estate (Budbyl Limaed” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Tillirghars Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
odnilis Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
“regown Farm Lirnted” UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
Turves Solar Lmited™ LK Qrdinary 100% Energy generaticn
LKSE 15 Solar Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Linited Mines Energy imited" UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
YCSE L UK Ordinary  100% Eiggbf‘c?g‘”nork
Victona Solar Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Viners Energy Limited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Vitrifi Limited LK Ordinary 100% ;zrgu?igfrk
Voltafrance 01 SARLY France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
veltafrance 05 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Voltafrance 13 SARL® France Grdinary 100% Energy generation
Voltafrance SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
YVorboss Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Vorboss LS g USA Ordinary  100% ;‘gj;g?;’;’f“
Wadswnck Green Limied™ UK Ordinary  100% igiig‘f”t village
Wadswick Green Property Services Jmited” UK Ordinary 160% ii;:ﬁiggfor?e
Warnrgion Power Lmited” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Waren.oc Sclar Park Holdirgs Lrmited™ K Ordinary 100% Halding company
Water 00 Sofar Park Lirited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Week Farm 2 Limited™ UK Crdinary 150% Energy generation
Westwooda Power cmited”” LK Crdinary 100% Energy gereration

Westwood 5olgr Lirted™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
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Country of Class of Principal

Name e incorporation shares  Holding activity
Y ’etrerger%ergylwfed S UK Ordinary 100% Energy genearation
Whiarf Power Lirmitad™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whiadon Farm Lirrited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Whirrey Hid Energy Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Wincelle So.ar Holaings Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Wolvernampton Power Lig” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Croft Wind Farm Lmited ¥ UK Ordiary 100% Energy generation
W5E Sradiord Limitec™ UK Qrdinary 100% Erergy generation
WEE Hullavingtos Holdings Limeted™” UK Ordinary 100% Holding ccmpany
WSE Hullavington dimited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Park Wali Limiten™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WEE Pyde Drove Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Jesies Assel Maragernent tirmited” UK Ordinary 106% Erergy generation
Acqulred after year end Date
Cuckoao Internet Lid 31/08/2022
vinf Digital Limited 13/07/2022
4ChH Limited 22/11/2022

“Subsidianes exempt frorm audit by virtue of s4804 of the Companies Act 2006
“subsidianes exempt from audit by v rtue of 54794 of tne Comparves Act 2006
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Dissolved or sold during the year and up until signing

B S O AT Bt

Beirneun Holdings Limited

Ridge Wind Acquisition Limited

Fern Energy RicgeWind Acquisiions Limiied
Fern Energy RingeWind Holdirgs Limiten
Fern Energy Partrerships Holangs Lirnited
Fraisthorpe {Holding) Limited

BY Cldnail Energy Recovery Lmited
Comm21 Ltd

Darlington Point Holdco Pty Limited
Darlington Point Solar Farm Pty Limied
Carlington Point Subholdco Pty Limited
Nordic PFower Develoomert Limiteg
Voyrinkangas Wind Farm Oy

Saunarmaa Wind rarm Oy

o 0 0 o B Y € B R R €

Date

A R R RRIRE  FL g LT

20/07/2021
20/07/2021
14/09/2021
21/09/20G21
21/09/26G21
29/03/2022
13/09/2022
15/09/2022
08/C7/2022
08/07/2022
08/0712022
23/12/2021
23/12/2021
23/12/2021

Tne registered office of all corpanies isied above is at 6th Floor, 33 Hotborn, condon, Englang, ECIN 2HT

excen: for those set out below

ul. Grzybowska 2/29, GO-131, Warsaw, Pc.and

N

2. Pimsent Masons LLE, Capital Sgoare, 58 Marnson Suest, Edinburgh, Scotlana, EH3 8BF
4. L West Regent Street, Giasgow, G2 (AP

4 22 rde Alprense de Newville, 75017 Parnis, France

5 6th Floor 2 Grard Caral Sguare, Zublie 2, 202 A342, reand

6. The Carriage House, Station Works, Station Read, Claverdon, Warwickshire, United Kingdom, Cv35 8FE
7. Zone industrete de Courtine 115 Rue Du Maureler 84000 Avignon, —rarce

8. 13 Zalshury Place, London, Snglard, WiH 1]

S The Corpcratior Trust Corrpany, Corporation Trust Center. 1209 Grange Streer, Wimengion 12801,

United Sates

0. 4th Faor Saltre Court, 20 Caste Terrace, Edinburch, Sconard, EHL 2EN

i Apcic Rouse, Mercury Park Wycomrpe Lane, Waookurn Green, bigh Wycomoe, Englara, A200 04K

-~y

120 Leve! 35 101 Coling Stresl Mepourns, Yictona, 3000, Austraila
135 Beaufort Court. £Egg Farm Lane, Kings Lannley, Hert‘crasnire, W34 BLR

14 7-8 Stratford Place, Londor, England, WiC 1AY

The drectors believe that tne car-y ng value of the nvestments 15 suppored by tne r underlying ret asse:s
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5] APPENDIX -~ SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)

M

I

Fern’'s share price has performed in line with targets

Ferm Traaing Limaed is an unl sted company. Every rronth, aur Board of Directors agrees a proe at whicn i
woil e willing 1o ssue new shares The share price 15 unaudited

The figures below include the share price of the previous patent (now Fern Trading Group Limsted) as well

as tris entity

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
18
17 o
16

15

o
14 M e
i S
13 e
12 S
11
10

2002 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2019 2020 2021 2022

Perforrrance is caiculated based on tne sale price for Fern's shares at 2 June each year. The share price i1s

~ot sugject to audit by Ermst & Young L L P
Annual diserete performange

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

ey

DT LP UMY S SISO O PR SR

June 2021-22 92.91%

June 2020-21 - 4,87%
R o e e
June 2C18-19 6.23%
wnezcizie o 108%

June 2016-17 ‘ - 7 - o 5.54%

June 2013-16 3.83%

June 2014-15 3.98%
June 2013-14 3.72%
June 2012-13 3.97%

June 2011-12 1.02%

Source Oclopus Investrments Limited, 2 June 2022
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Directors and advisers

Dhirectors
PS Latham
KJ

PC Har ow
T Artaur (appointed 1 July 2022)

Company secratary

Octopus Companry Secretaral Services Limie

Company number
12601636

Forward-locking statements

Tris Annual Repor: conta:ns certain forwardg-:

and fnancial perforrmance ana future events or developirents These

krnowledge snd expectat.ons of management

of which are related WO factors that are beyon

pe given that any particular 2xpectation wll be met ana forward-loo<ng

NY INFORMATIC

i Registered office
h

Floar, 32 Heloorn,
Loncon, england ECIN ZHT

indenendent suditors
tmst & Young CLP

cedford House,
16 Badford Stree.
Sefasi BT2 707

oo<ng statements refatec o the Compary's fulure bushess

ard are zubj

d the cormrol of the

actvities should not be taker as a4 representatior t

performance canrot be relied o~ as a guide to future ger‘ormance No siigllslv i

consirued as a proft forecast

statemerts are based on the curent
ot o aszump:\(ms

5 anc uncertantes, sore

)

croapary AC(‘OF NGy, NO dsourarkie dan
statements

o]
o

re ;arcmg nas: trends or

Ratsuach tronds or actvities wil continue in the “uture Past

n tris ﬁmma Report shoud be




